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CORPORATE INFORMATION A= & #}
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CORPORATE PROFILE AFIEFN

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL
POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED

Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
is principally engaged in the research and development,
production and sale of single-use medical devices. The
Group has a wide range of products, which includes:
i) consumables (infusion sets, syringes, medical needles,
blood bags, pre-filled syringes, blood sampling products, and
other consumables); ii) orthopedic materials and iii) blood
purification consumables. The Company is recognised as an
industrialization base to commercialise products developed
by the State High-tech Research and Development (863)
Program, the State High-tech Enterprise and the State
Technology Center. The Group’s main production facilities is
situated in Weihai City in Shandong Province.

The Group is incorporated in the People’s Republic of China.
The Group has an extensive sales network comprising 22
sales offices, 30 customer liaison centers and 111 municipal
representative offices. It has an extensive customer base of
5,069 healthcare organizations and distributors, including
2,951 hospitals, 414 blood stations, 622 other medical units
and 1,082 trading companies.

The Group produces a wide range of products in following
major categories, namely:—

I.  Single use medical consumables and materials
(including infusion (transfusion) sets, syringes, blood
bags and blood component segregator consumable,
blood sampling products, prefilled syringes for pre-pack
medication and medical needles which mainly include
intravenous needles, syringe needles, intravenous
catheter needles, blood sampling needles and irregular
needles;

Il.  Orthopedic materials and instruments, including trauma
products of steel plates and screws, spinal implants and
artificial joints; and

lll.  Blood purification consumables, including puncture

needles, extracorporeal blood circuit for blood
purification sets, dialyzers and related consumables.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT X /F#hEE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited,
I would like to present the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2011 (the
“Year”). The Group's results in 2011 have continued to
grow steadily, with prominent effect from the optimization
adjustment to product mix, which laid a foundation for our
future development.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

During the year under review, the Group recorded
turnover of approximately RMB3,180,577,000 (2010:
RMB2,462,557,000) for the year ended 31st December,
2011, representing an increase of approximately 29.2%
over the previous year and profit attributable to equity
shareholders was approximately RMB3,462,172,000
(2010: RMB799,072,000), representing an increase of
approximately 333.3% over the previous year. Net profit
attributable to the owner of the Company excluding
extraordinary item was RMB958,036,000 (2010:
RMB760,628,000) representing an increase of approximately
26.0% over the previous year and basic earning per share
was approximately RMBO0.78. The growth in turnover and
profit attributable to shareholders have been mainly due to
our strategy of optimizing the product mix, focusing on the
business development of blood purification products and
increased the marketing and sales efforts on high value-
added products.

AAMBRRURBESEEERSD T
HaBRNARAREEE ((EFg])MA
BRRREEAEEBE_T—F+_-H
=t BUEFE ([RFE])HEERR
BRE-AEE_T——FEEERER
PRE EmEBREEER(CNHRRE
EORRREREE TER-

MEWE

CEFEN AEBREE-_ZT—F+=
AZ+—BLFEMEEBEIOAR
#3,180,577,000c (ZE—ZFF: AR
#2,462,557,0007T) * 8 = — F [ 1 11
#929.2% MmEZBREEGEZMOBEAR
#3,462,172,000c (ZE—ZFF: AR
#£799,072,0007T) ' & £ —FE EF L
333.3% NEHRIBEMNAR G HE A
&1k 4 %) & A R #5958,036,0000T (=&
—ZTF: AR¥760,628,0007T) & F—
FEFFA426.0% - FRELRZFN AN
R #0.787T o & 58 N AR R FEAG /& F138 0
TEAAEERREHEEEREENE
LA ERERMBF(LERER &
MEMMNEERATISHETEEE -

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT MBEE
Audited
BEX
2011 2010 Growth
—E——§ —T-IZF g&
RMB'000 RMB'000

AERBTRE ARE®TRT %

Turnover HERR 3,180,577 2,462,557 29.2

Gross profit £ A 1,760,116 1,359,699 29.4
Net profit attributable to the owners of T &H4FZEIE B §9
the Company excluding extraordinary KABHEB A

items JE A 4 A 958,036 760,628 26.0

Net profit attributable to shareholders IR R A 4L 3,462,172 799,072 3333
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT */FhE=

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group continued the strategy of
optimizing the product mix, focusing on the business
development of blood purification products and increased
the marketing and sales efforts on high value-added
products such as intravenous catheters, non PVC infusion
sets, specialized infusion set with dosage control device,
achieving a continuous growth in turnover. Due to effective
adjustments in product mix, the Group absorbed the impact
of escalating raw materials and labour costs during the Year,
and further increased the gross profit margin to 55.3% from
55.2% in the previous year. The performance of the Group in
four business segments was as follows:

(1)

The growth momentum continued for consumables of
the Group, reaching approximately RMB2,643,990,000
for the year ended 31st December, 2011, representing
an increase of 27.3% when compared with the previous
year;

The turnover of orthopaedic for the year was
approximately RMB243,423,000, representing a growth
of 38.9% when compared with the previous year.
The Distribution Joint Venture with Medtronic, Inc. in
orthopaedic products contributed approximately a net
profit of RMB47,224,000 to the Group for the year,
representing an increase of 7.0% when compared with
the previous year;

The turnover of haemodialysis consumables
and equipment for the year was approximately
RMB293,164,000, representing an increase of
39.8% when compared with the previous year. Loss
attributable to Weigao Nikkiso (Weihai) Dialysis
Equipment Co., Ltd. (“Weigao Nikkiso™”), which is
51% held by the Group, amounted to approximately
RMB6,601,000; and

The stent business of LR EFHEEERER AT
(Shandong JW Medical Products Company Limited)
("JW Medical”), a 50% jointly owned entity of the
Company, contributed approximately RMB106,443,000
to the profit of the Group for the nine months ended
30th September, 2011. The Company disposed of its
50% equity interest in JW Medical and an one-off profit
contribution of approximately RMB2,568,534,000 was
recognized by the Group. Biosensors International Pte
Ltd. (“Biosensors”), which is 21.6% held by the Group,
contributed approximately RMB4,195,000 to the profit
of the Group. Excluding extraordinary items, Biosensors
contributed approximately RMB36,595,000 to the profit
of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT X /F#hEE

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of RMB0.03 (2010: RMB0.075), which is subject to approval
by the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) at the
forthcoming general meeting.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Saturday, 21st April, 2012 to Monday, 21st May,
2012 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of determining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “Annual General Meeting”), during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to qualify for attending the Annual
General Meeting, shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
are lodged with the Company'’s branch share registrar, Tricor
Standard Limited at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 20th April, 2012.

In order to qualify for attending the annual
general meeting:-

Latest time to lodge in the transfer
instrument accompanied by
the share certificates

4:30 p.m., Friday,
20th April, 2012

Closure of register of members of
the Company for attendance of
the annual general meeting

Saturday,
21st April, 2012 to
Monday, 21st May,
2012

Latest time to lodge in the reply slip  4:30 p.m., Monday,

30th April, 2012

Date of annual general meeting Monday,

21st May, 2012
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT */FhE=

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board recommended a final dividend of RMB0.03 per
share (inclusive of tax). The total amount of final dividends
to be distributed shall be approximately RMB134,291,000, of
which dividends paid to non-resident corporate shareholders
will be subject to the corporate tax applicable on the PRC
sourced income pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income
Tax Law and the Regulations on the Implementation of the
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law that became effective on
1st January, 2008 and the applicable tax rate is 10%. The
listed issuer will be responsible for withholding the relevant
amount of tax from the dividend payment and the dividends
to be received by the non-resident corporate shareholders
will be net of withholding tax. The proposal to declare and
pay the final dividend will be submitted to the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting to be held on Monday, 21st May,
2012. Final dividend for non-listed shares will be distributed
and paid in Renminbi whereas dividend for H shares will be
declared in Renminbi and paid in Hong Kong dollars.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Saturday, 26th May, 2012 to Thursday, 31st May, 2012 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of determining shareholders’
entitlement to final dividend for the year ended 31st
December, 2011, during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for
entitlement of final dividend, shareholders should ensure
that all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Tricor Standard Limited at 26/F, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
no later than 4:30 p.m. on 25th May, 2012.
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PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT X /F#hEE

OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (continued)

In order to qualify to entitle the final dividend for

the year ended 31st Saturday, December, 2011:-

Latest time to lodge in the transfer 4:30 PM.,
instrument accompanied by Friday, 25th
the share certificates May, 2012

Closure of register of members of Saturday,
the Company for the entitlement of 26th May, 2012
final dividend for the year ended to Thursday,
31st December, 2011 31st May, 2012

Record date for entitlement of Thursday,
final dividend 31st May, 2012

Despatch date of final dividend Friday, 15th June,

2012

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Group’s various achievements as mentioned above
are attributable to the continued supports of the staff,
customers and business partners and shareholders. | would
like to take this opportunity to express my most sincere

thanks for all your contributions!

Chen Xue Li
15th March, 2012
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BBz smEd oM

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Company issued bonus non-listed
Shares and bonus H Shares and placed new H Shares.
The Company placed a total of 85,624,000 new H shares
on 27th April, 2011 and completed the placing on 30th
June, 2011. Bonus Shares were issued on the basis of one
bonus Share for every Share held on 7th June, 2011. The
total issued share capital of the Company was enlarged to
4,476,372,324 Shares after the bonus issue and placing.

INTERNATIONAL COLLABORATION

The Group is dedicated to becoming a leading medical
device manufacturer in Asia.

During the Year, the Company agreed to dispose of its
entire 50% equity interest in JW Medical which is principally
engaged in stent business to Biosensors International
Group Ltd (“Biosensors”), a Singapore listed company at
a consideration of S$625,400,000, and the consideration
was satisfied by way of cash, by the issue of Biosensors new
shares and by the issue of convertible notes convertible into
Biosensors shares. The transaction has been completed on
3rd October, 2011.

During the Year, Distribution Joint Venture with Medtronic
for the twelve months ended 31st December, 2011
contributed approximately RMB47,224,000 to net profit
of the Group, representing an increase of 7.0% when
compared with the previous year. This was mainly due to
the establishment of a technology support centre and the
implementation of an employee incentive growth plan
resulting in additional expenses. During the Year, Weigao
Nikkiso (& /= B#4E) , a joint venture company with Nikkiso
Co., Ltd., was undergoing trial production and was in the
process of applying for product registration certificate for
its dialysis machine. It is expected to commence production
in the second quarter of 2012. The joint venture company
produces haemodialysis machines and provides after-sales
services in China. Weigao Blood will distribute haemodialysis
machines in China produced by the joint venture company.
The collaboration leverages the complementary strengths of
the two partners and it will further strengthen the Group’s
competitive position in the blood purification segment. It
also lays a solid foundation for the business expansion of
the Group in the blood purification market in China. Loss
from Weigao Nikkiso attributable to the Group for the
twelve months ended 31st December, 2011 amounted to
RMB6,601,000
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B IEE &l smEd oM

OPTIMIZATION ADJUSTMENTS TO PRODUCT
MIX

During the Year, the Group continued the strategy of
optimizing the product mix, focusing on the business
development of blood purification products and increased
the marketing and sales efforts on high value-added
products such as intravenous catheters, non PVC infusion
sets, specialized infusion set with dosage control device,
achieving a continuous growth in turnover. Due to effective
adjustments in product mix, the Group absorbed the impact
of escalating raw materials and labour costs during the Year,
and further increased the gross profit margin to 55.3% from
55.2% in the previous year. The performance of the Group in
four business segments were as follows:

1.

Consumables: the principal products segment
of the Group maintained a continuous growth
trend and achieved a turnover of approximately
RMB2,643,990,000 representing an increase of 27.3%
when compared with the previous year.

The Group recorded a continuing growth in
needle products, with turnover of approximately
RMB549,263,000, representing an increase of 37.9%
when compared with the last year. The Directors believe
that needle products will become an important area for
the on-going development of the Company.

During the Year, the Group overcame the impact
from certain provinces and cities that initiated to
regulate the usage of high-ended infusion sets. The
market development of specialized infusion sets
with dosage control device and infusion sets made
of proprietary non PVC based material maintained
growth momentum. Turnover of infusion sets of the
Group amounted to RMB937,652,000, representing an
increase of 29.6% over last year. The Directors believe
that the product development trend in safety infusion
set will remain unchanged and hence specialized
infusion sets with dosage control device and non PVC
based infusion sets will have enormous development
potential in the PRC. The Group will continue to
consolidate its core competitive advantages in this
sector.
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OPTIMIZATION ADJUSTMENTS TO PRODUCT
MIX (continued)

During the Year, the glass tube production line for
pre-filled syringes was operating smoothly. The
Group established a favourable position in market
development. However, sales were affected by the
reduction in demand from pre-filled syringes customers
whose production facilities were subject to GMP
inspection and certification. Turnover of pre-filled
syringes for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB126,492,000, representing an increase of 29.5%
over the last year. As at the date of this report, the
customers for the Company’s pre-filled syringes
had passed the GMP inspection and certification.
During the Year, the Company invested approximately
RMB60,000,000 to purchase new production lines for
pre-filled syringes to expand its production capacity.

The blood purification business of Weigao Blood, a
subsidiary of the Company, had achieved rapid growth
and the haemodialysis consumables production line
had reached its full operating capacity. During the Year,
Weigao Blood restructured the distribution channels
for haemodialysis machine products and resulted a
temporarily drop in sales volume. During the Year,
the Group recorded a turnover of approximately
RMB293,164,000, representing an increase of
approximately 39.8% when compared with last year.
The Group invested approximately RMB100 million to
purchase the second dialyser production line to expand
the production capacity to meet market demand, and
it is expected that the installation and trial run will be
completed in the second quarter of 2012. The Directors
expect that the blood purification business will become
an important future direction and segment for the
development of the Group. Weigao Blood has already
obtained the approval from the government to operate
pilot haemodialysis centres independently. As at the
date of this report, Weigao Blood established one
haemodialysis centre and preparation is underway for
opening up two other haemodialysis centres.
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OPTIMIZATION ADJUSTMENTS TO PRODUCT
MIX (continued)

3. During the Year, turnover of orthopaedic business was
approximately RMB243,423,000, representing a growth
of 38.9% when compared with last year.

4.  For the nine months ended 30th September, 2011,
IR HEEERmABRAGF (Shandong JW Medical
Products Company lelted) ("JW Medical”), a 50%
jointly owned entity of the Company, contributed
approximately RMB106,443,000 (for the year ended
31st December, 2010: RMB155,587,000) to the profit
of the Group. An one-off profit of RMB2,568,534,000
was recognised by the Group for the sale of JW Medical
by the Company. For the three months ended 31st
December, 2011, Biosensors which is 21.6% held by
the Group, contributed approximately RMB4,195,000 to
the profit of the Group. Excluding extraordinary items,
Biosensors contributed approximately RMB36,595,000
to the profit of the Group.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

For the twelve months ended 31st December, 2011, the
Group obtained 28 new patents and 40 new patents are
under application. Product registration certificates for 20
new products were obtained. The research and development
for 41 products were completed for which application for
product registration certificates are underway.

The strategy of placing strong emphasis on research and
development had enhanced the Company’'s competitiveness
and laid a solid foundation for the Company to fully leverage
on its customer resources and provided the Group with new
profit growth drivers.

For the twelve months ended 31st December, 2011, the
Group had over 210 product registration certificates and
over 150 patents, of which 21 were patents on invention.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BBz smEd oM

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (continued)

In view of the need for the strategic adjustments to product
mix, the Group continued to increase its investments in the
research and development of its existing products series and
new medical devices, so as to further improve its product
series and expand product range. The Group continued to
consolidate its leading position in research and development
capability in China. For the twelve months ended 31st
December, 2011, total research and development expenses
amounted to approximately RMB142,031,000 (2010:
RMB100,042,000), representing 4.5% (2010: 4.1%) of the
turnover of the Group.

PRODUCTION

For the year ended 31st December, 2011, the production
volume of the Group's products as compared with the
previous year is as follows:

MAERASE (5)

ERERGEEBERERAENER  ~EE
BENANERBERRIMZ @5 EE
BB BIEA - LUE— P EEE®R
RIMHMEERELS FERFTALMH
BEINBLHN -BHE-_T—F+ =
A=+—HL+=@R HEI2R/AZLH
B ANR®142,031,0000T (ZE—ZF:
AR #100,042,0007T) 15 W A BI4.5%
(Z2—ZF:41%) °

&

BE-T— —F1-A=t—ALFE
AR E S A L EROERRRETY
R

For the twelve months ended 31st December

8E+-RA=+—HL+={ER

Increase/
Product Type Measurement unit 2011 2010 (Decrease)
ERBRE HEEM 22— —E-TF Em/ )
%
Syringes 1,000 pieces 893,452 801,257 11.5
5T Tx%
Infusion sets 1,000 pieces 424,800 384,880 10.4
ik (1) 28 Tx%
Blood Sampling products 1,000 pieces 175,957 135,330 30.0
R 10 2 Tx%
Intravenous catheters 1,000 pieces 50,856 37,651 35.1
BE T
Pre-filled syringes 1,000 pieces 48,634 31,224 55.8
BRI Tx%
Blood bags 1,000 sets 22,918 20,433 12.2
nEE F&
PVC granules Tons 13,817 13,556 1.9
PVCHL £} i
Orthopaedic products 1,000 sets 3,175 2,030 56.4
ERRESE TE
Blood purification consumables 1,000 sets 1,605 1,162 38.1
IR FAE #E TE

During the Year, the Group continued to implement strategy
on product mix adjustment by increasing the proportion of
high value added products while decreasing the production
plan of low value added products with low rate of returns. It
has enhanced the contribution rate for each type of product
and raised the overall profitability of the Company.
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SALES AND MARKETING

The Group persisted to implement the strategy of integrating
its sales channels and focused on product mix adjustment
and improved the efficiency of credit resources extended on
account receivables. The above measures had made fruitful
progress.

During the Year, the Group consolidated its sales
management system, strengthened the development of
direct sales, integrated market resources and phased out low
profitability customers. For the twelve months ended 31st
December, 2011, the Group newly added 11 hospitals and 1
blood station to its customer portfolio. As at the date of this
report, the Group has a customer base of 5,069 (including
2,951 hospitals, 414 blood stations, 622 other medical units
and 1,082 distributors).

Sales comparison by geographical regions for the Year when
compared with last year are set out as follows:

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

HERTIHER

AEBRFHERBES ZERE AR
EmGEABRMREARKERERAER
MR Wi 8RR

FENAN - $E@§§1tﬁﬁ EIEEEX 0
BEEAE BAMBER AKLDRE
BRONEF -BHE-_ZT—F+-_A=+—
BIE+=Z@A BEFPHMEBIKRER 1K
Mk - RATRETFIZRBE KAEBHNEF
4% A5,069% (BIEERT2,9515 « ML
44K -H B BEENG22FKM1,082FK &
5 ) ©

EREMETRMENHEESL KEE
FHLT
ERIAMES SR

For the
twelve months ended
31st December

8E+-A=+—-AL+=fER

Increase/
(Decrease)
over
corresponding
Region HME 2011 2010 period
& [F
—2——5 “E-TF #m,/ CRd)

RMB'000 RMB'000
N5 b ARETTT %
Fastern and Central EREER 1,003,799 731,010 37.3
Northern E3ld 720,116 590,558 21.9
Northeast ®it 411,122 361,824 13.6
Southern B 289,810 240,588 20.5
Southwest G| 273,832 196,589 39.3
Northwest [ithl¢ 90,139 67,696 33.2
Overseas A 160,694 116,498 37.9
Distribution JV NEAE N 231,065 156,794 47 4
Total Bt 3,180,577 2,462,557 29.2
SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED LR FeEBERs 2 FERENER A A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BBz smEd oM

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

(continued)

The integration of sales channels has strengthened the
Group’s market penetration in and influence over direct
sales to high-end customers. It enhanced sales contribution
significantly. Average sales per customer were increased
by approximately 28.8% over last year. Continued driving
higher product penetration to high-end customers is an
important way to generate revenue growth.

Adjustment in product mix was another important factor
in enhancing the results for the Year. During the Year,
the Group focused on sales and marketing of high value-
added products such as needle products, pre-filled syringes
and high value-added infusion sets. It has increased the
proportion of sales generated from high value-added
products. Sales revenue comparison of principal products
with that of last year is set as follows:

For the twelve months ended
31st December

BEt-A=t—-ALt-f@A

ERBAMESE (&)

REMES BRTAKREEEHSWE
FENZEN ZEN R TEREFPHN
BRE BEEPYOHERREFER
#)28.8% - FEMERHELNEMSE
T EAEBNPRAREN-HERZTF

B

EREBNRABRSETFARENS —
HEZRZ FRAASEEHEENH
an - FRFE VST ER R SRR RS = M
BEEMNFEE EeMEERBAGEK
AZHEPIE R - F T EEMFERAR L
FHEBRMT

For the three months ended
31st December

BE+-AZt-HIL=M@A

Increase/ Increase/

(Decrease) (Decrease)

over over

Product category EREH 2011 2010 previous year 2011 2010 previous year

BEF BLF

—E——§ CZT-TF #n/(6p) IZB——f ZT-TF #n/080)

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT AREFL % ARBTR ARETE %

Infusion sets B 937,652 723,697 29.6 249,829 198,656 258

Needles BRHHEM 549,263 398,354 37.9 141,669 103,165 373

Syringes 58 469,694 408,054 15.1 122,914 112,448 93

Blood bags MEEE 188,876 168,744 119 57,982 53,667 8.0

Pre-filled syringes ErRAFGE 126,492 97,676 295 21,593 20,795 38

Blood sampling products RMEmR 61,127 49,675 23.1 17,684 15,063 17.4

PVC granules PVCHI#} 63,896 60,179 6.2 16,371 20,413 (19.8)

Other products HEtER 246,990 171,223 443 74,313 30,034 1474
Subtotal for Disposable Medical ~ — /X1 E R M /)&t

Consumables 2,643,990 2,077,602 273 702,355 554,241 26.7

Orthopaedic products ERER 243,423 175,233 38.9 68,061 51,895 312

Blood purification consumables A& F (L FE# 192,780 142,893 349 59,373 51,982 14.2

Blood purification equipments Mgk 8 100,384 66,829 50.2 24,669 11,010 124.1

Total @it 3,180,577 2,462,557 29.2 854,458 669,128 277
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2011,

the Group employed a total

of 7,875 employees. The breakdown by departments when
compared with the previous year is as follows:

ANBE

RZF——F+ZA=1T—H AKEHX
BH7875%RE  BEAFLERWAMSD
T

Department &P
2011 2010
—2——F _—_T-IFTF
Production HE 5,541 5,010
Sales and marketing SHE RIS E 1,050 1,012
Research and development it 2% 789 731
Finance and administration B R ATIR 257 250
Quality control B2 132 129
Management B 76 71
Purchasing R 30 30
Total Eat 7,875 7,233

Save for the 7 employees (including the company secretary)
who reside in Hong Kong and Europe, all employees of

the Group are resided in China. For the year, total cost
of salaries, welfare and social benefits of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB397,844,000 (2010:
RMB320,377,000).

Remuneration System

The Group's remuneration policy has been determined
based on its performance, changes in the local spending
power and competition in human resources market. The
remuneration policy so determined has become the basis
of determining the salary levels of employees recruited
for different positions. The salary of each employee is
determined according to the employee’s performance,
ability, employment conditions and the salary standards set
by the Company. Remuneration of Directors is determined
by the Remuneration Committee with reference to the
operating results of the Company, personal performance
of the Director and market competition. The proposed
remuneration of Directors requires approval by shareholders
at annual general meeting.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IUERE 5 EEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BBz smEd oM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31st December, 2011, the Group
recorded a turnover of RMB3,180,577,000 (2010:
RMB2,462,557,000), representing an increase of
29.2% over the previous financial year and net profit
attributable to shareholders was RMB3,462,172,000 (2010:
RMB799,072,000), representing an increase of 333.3% over
the previous financial year. Net profit attributable to the
owners of the Company excluding extraordinary items was
RMB958,036,000 (2010: RMB760,628,000), representing an
increase of approximately 26.0% over the previous year.

Bt 35 B BR

HE-_ZE——F+-_A=+—HILEE"
FEEHEESR ARKS3,180,577,0007T

— T —FTF: AR¥2,462,557,0007C
L) B E—HRFELR 729.2% ' &
SIRE R AR AR%3,462,172,0007T
(ZZT—ZF: AR#¥799,072,0007T) °
BE—HRFEER333.3% - TatF
HIBEMARAREE ABRMGAT N A
K #958,036,000t (ZE—ZF: AR
#760,628,0007T) '8 E—FE EF L
26.0% °

The continuous growth in turnover and profit was mainly 2 EZEMABENFTELREIBEENRE
due to the Group's optimization and adjustments to the EFEBEREENELARE LERERH
product mix, enhancement in operation efficiency and efforts 2 F % NIRRT £ -
in exploring new businesses.
Financial Summary BERE
Audited
BE
2011 2010 Growth
—E——F —_T-ITF BR
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRE ARETT %
Turnover o 3,180,577 2,462,557 29.2
Gross profit E7 1,760,116 1,359,699 29.4
Net profit attributable REHEFSRIE B
to shareholders excluding R B P A 4L )
extraordinary item 958,036 760,628 26.0
Net profit attributable to shareholders R% 5 & 1k 45 Fl| 3,462,172 799,072 333.3
Liquidity and Financial Resources nEBRERMBERIR

The Group has maintained a sound financial position
during the Year. As at 31st December, 2011, the Group’s
cash and bank balance amounted to approximately
RMB1,851,238,000. For the year ended 31st December,
2011, net cash flow from operating activities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB620,792,000. The Group
has maintained a sound cash flow position.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

During the year under review, the Group repaid bank
borrowings of approximately RMB26,145,000 in total.
As at 2nd March, 2012, the Group had repaid in full the
borrowings from IFC.

Total interest expenses of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2011 were approximately RMB1,142,000 (2010:
RMB9,658,000).

Gearing Ratio

As at 31st December, 2011, total net cash of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB1,767,226,000 (2010:
RMB517,844,000). The change in the total net cash was
mainly due to increase in profit and additional issuance in
equity financing in 2011.

Foreign Exchange Risks

The Group's purchases and sales are mainly conducted in
the PRC. All of its assets, liabilities and transactions are
denominated in RMB. For the year ended 31st December,
2011, the Group has not encountered any material
difficulty due to currency fluctuation nor shortage of its
own operating funds. For the twelve months ended 31st
December, 2011, the Group had no significant exposure to
foreign exchange fluctuation or hedging for such risk.

Due to the change in exchange rates, foreign exchange
loss equivalent to RMB15,906,000 for the year ended 31st
December, 2011 was recognized (2010: foreign exchange
gain equivalent to RMB3,025,000) by the Company.

Contingent Liabilities

On 21st April, 2011, the Company received a notice of
arbitration issued by the Hong Kong International Arbitration
Centre, which is related to the dispute in the contract with
ADJECT ApS for a maximum loss up to US$49,600,000.
As at the date of this report, the arbitration is still in the
progress. The Directors believe that the arbitration will have
no significant impact on the financial position of the Group.

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as
at 31st December, 2011.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Material Investments/Future Material Investment
Plans

1. According to the municipal planning of Weihai City,
the industrial zone of the Group’s medical consumables
production plant will be re-zoned as commercial and
residential use. Hence, during the Year, the Group
made an investment of RMB1,068,573,000 on land
acquisition and plant construction for the re-location of
all of the medical consumables production plants in the
future.

2. In view of the strong production demand for
blood purification consumables, Weigao Blood had
commenced the procurement and setting up of the
second production line. Total investment costs will be
approximately RMB100,000,000.

3. To expand the production capacity for pre-filled
syringes, the Group had started to invest in the
production line for pre-filled syringes. Total investment
costs will be approximately RMB60,000,000.

4. Facing the increasing pressure in staff recruitment, the
Group planned to invest in automatic production lines,
and increase technological modification to ease labor
shortage and reduce production costs. Total investment
costs will be approximately RMB100,000,000.

Save for the above material investments and investment
plans, the Group had no material capital commitments or
any future plans involving significant investments or capital
assets acquisition as at 31st December, 2011, and there was
no material acquisition and disposal in any other subsidiaries
and associates during the Year.

Capital commitment

As at 31st December, 2011, the capital commitment of
the Group and the Company contracted but not provided
for in respect of the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment amounted to approximately RMB435,076,000
(2010: RMB328,961,000), of which the capital commitment
in relation to the re-location of plant amounted to
approximately RMB408,523,000. The above amounts will be
financed by the internal resources of the Group.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Pledge of the Group’s Assets

As at 31st December, 2011, the Group had pledged the
land use rights and buildings with a net book value of
approximately RMB79,431,000 (2010: RMB82,021,000)
and pledged bank deposits of RMB107,472,000 (2010:
RMB134,109,000) to secure the bills and banking facilities
granted to the Group.

Reserves and Distributable Reserves

As at 31st December, 2011, total reserves of the Group
amounted to RMB7,754,354,000 (2010: RMB3,411,154,000).

Under the PRC laws and regulations, the Company’s
distributable reserves will be based on the lower of the
amount calculated according to the PRC accounting
principles and rules and the amount calculated according
to the Hong Kong generally accepted accounting principles.
As at 31st December, 2011, the distributable reserves of the
Company were approximately RMB1,464,994,000 (2010:
RMB600,537,000).

Review and Outlook

In 2011, firstly, the Group continued to face a significant
increase in material, transportation and labour costs in the
conventional products segment. The change in tax policy led
to the increase in operating costs of the Company, resulting
in a fairly low profit margin for majority of the conventional
products. Therefore, profit growth of conventional products
segment was significantly slowed down. Secondly, facing
competition in recruitment, the Orthopedic Joint Venture
made adjustment to the incentive scheme and established
a technology supporting centre, which therefore slowed
down the net profit growth compared with the revenue
growth of the Orthopedic Joint Venture. It resulted in a
lower attributable net profit growth of the Group in the
short term compared with the previous years. Thirdly, due
to the effect of the change in tax policy and the decrease in
product price, the attributable profit of the Group from the
stent segment was reduced. Fourthly, the growth of blood
purification segment was constrained by production capacity
and integration of distribution channels, the performance of
business development was less satisfactory than expected.
In summary, the net profit growth of the Group lagged
behind its revenue growth during the Year. However, the
Directors consider that the growth in volume and revenue
of four segments of the Group was well above the average
industry growth rates. This indicates that the market share
of each segment of Group was expanding and the decrease
in the profit growth rate in the short term would lay a
solid foundation for the on-going leading position by the
Company in the market in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BBz smEd oM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Review and Outlook (continued)

Looking forward to 2012, the Company believes that the
factors like rising materials and labour costs will remain and
it will continue to affect the profitability of conventional
products. Tight labor market will have pressure on the
expansion of the Group’s production capacity. In view of this
situation, the Group will place emphasis on the following:

1.

Continue to intensify more efforts on research and
development of new products and product sales mix
adjustment and consolidate the Group’s competitive
position in the PRC high-end market. The Group will
strengthen the medical staff training and the selection
and consolidation of distributors in the middle-
end market, thereby laying a solid foundation for
the Group’s entry into the middle-end market after
production capacity expansion in 2012.

Capitalize on the Group’s research and development
strengths, continue to increase the investments in
technological improvement, and increase automation
with an objective of assimilating the rising labour costs
and recruitment pressure in the long run. The Group
will speed up the study and implementation of the
long term incentive scheme for employees to share
the success of the Group. The Group will continue to
offer competitive salary and fringe benefits packages to
retain and expand the work force.

Continue to focus on domestic market. Leverage on
the stable development of domestic market to backup
the long term process of developing and expanding
overseas market. Fully capitalise on the customer
resource strengths in the PRC high-end market, through
international collaboration by ways of joint venture,
co-operation, technology transfer, acquisitions and
mergers, thereby introducing technologies and further
expanding product categories.

Strengthen the strategic management, in particular with
blood purification business as a foundation, strategically
expanding new product lines in the medical service
sector to counteract the policy risk and pressure from
competition.

With the launching of more upgraded products and new
product series, gradual easing of production capacity
constraint and the entry into the middle-end market,
the management believes that the Group will continue
to consolidate its leading position in the PRC market.
The Group and its employees are confident to face new
challenges.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B IEE &l smEd oM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Comparison of Use of Proceeds Raised from the
Placing in 2011 with Actual Application

The following table sets forth the intended use of net
proceeds as stated in the announcement of the Company
dated 28th April, 2011 and the actual application as at 31st

MO (=)

—E-—HFESEEMARERAERAR
PRE) AR A LE B

TR ARFERAR T ——FMA
—+\B B R AT B BT S SRR E R EY
BREMER -_T——F+-HA=+—8H

December, 2011.

MERBABR -

Actual
application
Intended as at
use of 31st December,
proceeds 2011
R-E——%f
FE%®E +=-B=+-H
Items KH REMAZ WERDARR
RMB RMB
ARETT ARET
Construction of new production plantand ~ EEHEEMENRBEELERE
purchase of production equipments for DA 2 R FAEL BT A o
the production of dialysers 157,000,000 157,000,000
Construction of new production plantand ~ EEHEEMERBEELERE
purchase of production equipments for DA ERE IR B AT R FEM
the production of consumables for
peritoneal dialysis 156,000,000 -
Construction of new production plantand ~ EERHLEERMEREELRE
purchase of equipments for the DA B PR OPVCHYFT M R
production of new materials replacing PVC 157,000,000 51,493,000
Construction of new production plantand ~ EENEERERBEEEERE
purchase of production equipments for ERFMEEE— RN
the production of single use consumables & AR
using new materials 80,000,000 71,272,000
Construction of new production plantand ~ EEHNEERMEREELESRE
purchase of production equipments for DA BE R AP0 RO % 8 S FE AT
the production of equipments and
consumables for blood centers 80,000,000 38,001,000
Construction of new production plantand ~ EENEEMERBEEEESRE
purchase of production equipments for NEEBBEERMRER
the production of automated production
machinery and mouldings 80,000,000 13,000,000
Use for potential mergers and acquisitions ~ AR EEHEKS
opportunities 200,000,000 -
Use as working capital REELES 545,800,000 545,800,000
1,455,800,000 876,566,000
SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED ILREmEBRERE S FTEARNBER DA
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE ESE &

To all shareholders:

The Supervisory Committee (the “Supervisory Committee”)
of Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company
Limited, in compliance with the relevant requirements of
the Company Law and the Articles of Association of the
Company, has conducted its work in accordance with the
fiduciary principle, and has taken up an active role to work
seriously and with diligence to protect the interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

During the Year, the Supervisory Committee had reviewed
cautiously the development plans of the Company and
provided reasonable suggestions and opinions to the Board.
It also strictly and effectively monitored and supervised the
Company’s management in making significant policies and
decisions to ensure that they are in compliance with the
relevant requirements of the Company Law and the Articles
of Association of the Company, and in the interests of its
shareholders.

We have reviewed and agreed to the report of the Directors,
audited financial statements and the dividend to be
proposed by the Board for presentation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. We are of the opinion that the
Directors, the chief executive officer and other senior
management of the Company are able to strictly observe
their fiduciary duty, to act diligently, to exercise their
authority faithfully in the best interests of the Company and
to work in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company. The transactions between the Company and
connected parties are in the interests of the shareholders as
a whole and under fair and reasonable price.

As of today, none of the Directors, chief executive officer
and senior management staff had been found to have
abused their authority, damaged the interests of the
Company or infringed upon the interests of its shareholders
and employees. None of them was found to be in breach of
any laws and regulations or the Articles of Association of the
Company.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE EfEeREE

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the achievement AEEEHWHARNFTR T ——FH&E
and cost-effectiveness of the Company in 2011 and has TEFMBUS IR AR RN om B, WH A
great confidence in the future prospect of the Company. ANRIH AR R AR TS O o

By Order of the Supervisory Committee EEEEW

Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer LREBESSEERAS FRAKG
Company Limited ARAT

Bi Dong Mei EFEFE

Chairman of Supervisory Committee f£%®

Weihai, Shandong Province, the PRC PEILEREBET

15th March, 2012 —E-_F%=AH+AH

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IURESEBEERs s FTERBKRMHERAR 25
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1% &R

OVERVIEW

The Board of Directors of the Company recognize the
importance of incorporating elements of good corporate
governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability. This report outlines the principles and the
code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “"Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, which
have been adopted by the Group since its listing on 28th
February, 2004.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the standard for
securities transactions by Directors. The Company has made
enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions throughout the year of
2011.

The following summarizes the corporate governance
practices of the Company:

The Board of Directors

The Board take responsibility to oversee all major matters
of the Company, including the formulation and approval
of overall business strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitoring the performance of
the senior management. The management is responsible for
the daily operations of the Group under the leadership of the
CEO. The Directors have the responsibility to act objectively
in the interests of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 “F 3

&

e

ARARBEEEFAAEASEENERER
MAEZEREFSIABRNEEERT
EMEEN EUNERERWBEE - K
WEME EMARAUNAMENECEERTENR
PRI (TSR AR B R ST ARG A&
BEagER_TEEWEF_A-_+/\B_Lt
T DA SR B 40 5% <F Rl K2 <7 BIME S o

BFEFTETESXANKRE
Al

AR AR LT AR RUMT &%+ PR &L a0 12
ETAEREZTETESFRINEE-
ARREAEEREFHFHFTER ME

RESNCRIBRSE_FT——FE—
EL#’F‘? SHMSEENEAHES

ETEFR NIRRT

ATHARABNEEE TR

EEE

EEC AT ERARANABEEESEE
BLIE S R L R B8 TSR B - (N BPEs i
LEBEBRG UNEESRERBAE
MRIR - BEEBETREAHNEETAEE
$EIMEMM cEBEBAFUARQTF
mEB{TE-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The Board of Directors (continued)

Currently, the Board comprises 11 Directors, including five
are executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The Directors as
at 31st December, 2011 are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhang Hua Wei
Mr. Wang Yi

Mr. Miao Yan Guo
Mr. Wang Zhi Fan
Mr. Wu Chuan Ming

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Xue Li
Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua

Mr. Li Bing Yung
Mr. Jean-Luc Butel (resigned on 7th March, 2012)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lo Wai Hung
Mr. Shi Huan (resigned on 15th August, 2011)

Mr. Luan Jian Ping (resigned on 15th March, 2012)

Mr. Li Jia Miao
Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong (appointed on 10th October, 2011)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1M¥#E 44

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The Board of Directors (continued)

In compliance of Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the
Board currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, The proposed appointment of Mrs. Wang Jin
Xia as an independent non-executive director is subject
to shareholders’ approval on 21st May 2012. Pursuant to
paragraph 12B of the Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules, each
of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed
by annual confirmation that he has complied with the
independence criteria set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Director consider that all three independent
non-executive Directors are independent under these
independence criteria and are capable to effectively exercise
independent judgment. Amongst the three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Lo Wai Hung has the
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting and
related financial management expertise required under Rule
3.10 (2) of the Listing Rules.

Board Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding board meetings
regularly for at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings will also be convened
if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of
board meeting will be sent to all Directors at least 10 days
prior to a regular board meeting. Reasonable notice will be
given to Directors for ad-hoc board meetings. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications.

The Company will adopt the practice to provide relevant
materials to all the Directors relating to the matters
brought before the meetings. All the Directors will be
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties,
and, upon reasonable requests, the Directors will be able
to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. All Directors will
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
Board meetings.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 “F 3

BFEFTETESXANRE
SR (&)

EE® (4E)

ABFAETHRIEIIMNE EFEH
HBE=-RBIIENTEET - BEZTE
FTREXTABIUFATESTAEFRE
R-E——FRA=-+—B#EEHA
EE - 1BE _E TR B 8+ /S5 12BER -
BBIUFPTESHEUTERRER
R A EMARREINMEAEE LS
MIZEE-ZBERE BBEULEBLHHIZ
B2 =BEILIFRNTESHTREBEILA
TR EBERN B M - E =R IE
WITESH  EEMELEREELEMHRRE
SI0RMEFTREMEE BXER LG
ARHBAM B ERE RN -

EEEen

ARANEFEEREFRIEHRET
MR ROBFRT-R-HBEKNEH
PR S5 LB BRRIEALAEHE
MEEMPHERIR 2REFHNERITE
HEEggaRb T REEESEE S
EBEE MEFEFEERAETINGE
RENEKETES - EFARFIBBE
FBATAEE -

AARIRKERIMMEESRES F5T
WEEMNEEER - 2REEHESKED
MERNBITERS YTHEAEMNEX
T BEEARAEBATERBUEES
B BEBALGAE - 2BERHAEK

EREZSEERIEAMAZEE-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR

e
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Board Meetings (continued)

Number of Board meetings held during the year 2011: 6.

The attendance of each Director at Board meetings during
the year ended 31st December, 2011 was as follows:

SR (4)

EFEgER(8)

R-F——FESE

6 °

THES

bt

%%%ﬁﬁ% = = Ak

TEHNE:

BHE-ZT——F+A=1+—RHBLFE-
MIE ST

Attendance
in 2011
W-—E——%F
B9 H B &
(%)
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zhang Hua Wei ofk 2 g 5 A 100%
Mr. Wang Yi ERHEE 100%
Mr. Miao Yan Guo e B 5 A& 100%
Mr. Wang Zhi Fan FERBEE 100%
Mr. Wu Chuan Ming REALE 100%
Non-executive Directors FERITES
Mr. Chen Xue Li PR 22 1) 5 & 100%
Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua B EE L+ 100%
Mr. Li Bing Yung TR E 83%
Mr. Jean-Luc Butel Jean-Luc Butelst &=
(resigned on 7th March, 2012) (RZZE—Z_F=AtHET) 50%
Independent non-executive Directors WIUAFRITES:
Mr. Shi Huan A B 5 £
(resigned on 15th August, 2011) (RZZE—FN\A+HRHEEET) 100%
Mr. Luan Jian Ping BE¥ist
(resigned on 15th March, 2012) (RZE——F=A+RHBET) 100%
Mr. Li Jia Miao FRIESTE 100%
Mr. Lo Wai Hung EEEEE 100%
Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong RERfP 2+
(appointed on 10th October, 2011) (R—ZE—F+A+HEZT) 100%

Minutes of the Board and the committee meetings are
recorded, and draft minutes and final version are submitted
to Directors for review within reasonable time after the
meetings, normally 14 days after the meetings.

Secretary of the Board assists the chairman to establish
meeting agenda, and each Director may request inclusion of
items in the agenda.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Board Meetings (continued)

Matters on transactions where Directors are considered
having conflict of interests or material interests will not
be dealt with by way of written resolutions. The Directors
concerned can express views but will not be counted in the
quorum of meetings and shall abstain from voting on the
relevant resolution(s).

All Directors have access to the company secretary who
is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are
complied with, and advising the Board on compliance
matters.

Minutes of the Board and the committee meetings are kept
by the company secretary and are open for inspection by
Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under provision A2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman
and the CEO should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Chen Xue Li is the
Chairman of the Board and a non-executive Director who is
not involved in the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business. Mr. Zhang Hua Wei is the CEO of the Company and
an executive Director of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board is appointed by the Board itself,
who is responsible for the leadership of effective operation
of the Board, and ensuring that all major and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board on a timely basis and in a
constructive manner. The CEO is appointed by the Board. He
is responsible for the management of daily operations of the
Company and the implementation of the strategies and plans
determined by the Board.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Experience

The executive Directors and non-executive Directors
possess administrative leadership, diversified knowledge
and extensive management experience in the industry. The
independent non-executive Directors possess extensive
knowledge, experience and judgment in different areas.
The Board will seriously consider the objective views of the
independent non-executive Directors for making decisions,
and regard this as an effective guidance for the Group’s
business direction.

Nomination, Appointment and removal of
Directors

Each of the Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a specific term of
three years, and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company.

The Company has not experienced any casual vacancy
for members of the Board. In the event that there is such
circumstance, the Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after his appointment.

The Board selects and nominates Director candidates based
on whether they possess the skills and experience needed for
the Group's development.

The Company has not set up a nomination committee, the
Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of directors,
monitoring the nomination of directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors of the
Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Directors’ responsibility

The Board manages the business of the Company on behalf
of its shareholders. The Directors consider that they are
obliged to fulfill their responsibilities in a prudent, diligent
and faithful manner, so as to create value for shareholders
and safeguard the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee on
12th August, 2005 in accordance with the requirement of
the Code. The remuneration committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Jia
Miao, Mr. Lo Wai Hung and Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong and a non-
executive director, Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua.

The remuneration committee has reviewed the remuneration
policy, the performance and the remuneration of executive
Directors and members of senior management, the existing
terms of service contracts of the executive Directors. The
objective of the remuneration policy is to ensure that the
Company is able to attract, retain and motivate high-caliber
staff, which is vital to the success of the Company.

In reviewing and determining the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors and members of senior management,
the remuneration committee considers their responsibilities,
skills, expertise and contribution to the Group’s performance
and whether remuneration packages are competitive and
sufficient to ensure that the Group is able to attract and
retain the best available executive talent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

Remuneration of Directors is subject to annual assessment
and recommendation by the Remuneration Committee to the
Board for further review and approval, which subsequently
subject to shareholders’ approval at annual general meeting.
The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
Directors remuneration packages is to enable the Company
to retain and motivate executive Directors by linking their
compensation with performance as measured against
corporate objectives. Under the policy, a Director is not
allowed to approve his own remuneration.

During the Year, one meeting has been held by the
remuneration committee. All members of the remuneration
committee attended the meeting during which the
responsibilities of the remuneration committee were defined
and matters such as the remuneration policy, incentive
mechanism of the Directors and senior management
of the Group were reviewed. The chairman of the
remuneration committee reports the findings and provides
recommendations to the Board after each meeting.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management (continued)

Nomination Committee

The Company proposed to establish a nomination committee
on 15th March, 2012 subject to shareholders’ approval on
21st May, 2012. in accordance with the requirement of the
Code. The nomination committee comprises Mr. Lo Wai
Hung, Mr. Li Jia Miao, Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong and Mrs. Zhou
Shu Hua. The chairman of the nomination committee is Mr.
Lo Wai Hung. The terms of reference of the nomination
committee have been defined . The principal duties include:—

—  to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy.

—  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships.

- to assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors.

— to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee shall be provided with sufficient
resources to perform its duties and shall have access to
independent professional advice if necessary. All members of
the Nomination Committee shall have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary, and separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management
for obtaining necessary information.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

All Directors are provided with explanations and information
by the management of the Company so as to enable them to
have discussions and make assessment at Board meetings.

All Directors acknowledge the responsibility for the
preparation of its accounts, with the responsibility statement
in respect to the financial reports made by the Directors set
out in this annual report. The auditors have also made a
statement about their responsibilities in the auditor’s report.

The Board presents a comprehensive, balanced and
understandable assessment on the position and prospects of
the Group in all shareholder communications.

Internal control

Directors are responsible for reviewing the internal control
and risk management system of the Company periodically to
ensure its effectiveness and efficiency. With the support of
the internal audit department, they will review the practices,
procedures, expenditure and internal control of the Company
and its subsidiaries on a regular basis. The management will
regularly monitor the concerns as reported by the internal
audit department to ensure appropriate remedial measures
have been implemented. The Board or senior management
can also request the internal audit group to review the
specific scope of concerns and report the significant findings
of such review to the Board and the audit committee.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control of the Group.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit committee

The audit committee of the Company comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lo Wai
Hung (chairman of the audit committee), Mr. Li Jia Miao and
Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong and a non-executive Director, Mrs. Zhou
Shu Hua. The terms of reference of the audit committee have
been clearly defined. Its principal responsibilities include:

—  To be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board regarding the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditors; to formulate the
remuneration and terms of engagement of external
auditors and to propose the Board to submit the
same at the general meeting for consideration. To
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditors when the general meeting is
authorizing the Board to determine the remuneration
of the auditors; and to address any questions regarding
the resignation or retirement of that auditor.

—  To review and oversee the independence and objectivity
of engaging external auditors and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards. The Committee shall discuss with the
auditors regarding the nature and scope of the
audit and the relevant reporting obligations before
commencing the audit.

— To develop and implement policy in engaging external
auditors to provide non-auditing services. For the
purpose of this requirement, external auditors includes
any entity that is under common control, ownership
or management with that audit firm or any entity that
a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be
part of the audit firm domestically or internationally.
The Committee shall report to the Board, in respect
of any matters in which it considers that an action or
improvement is needed and to make recommendations
as to the steps to be taken.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit committee (continued)

To monitor the completeness of the financial statements
of the Company and the annual report and accounts
and half-year report and quarterly report of the
Company and to review the significant opinion of the
respective financial reporting contained therein. In this
regard, in reviewing the relevant statements and reports
of the respective annual report and accounts, half-year
report and quarterly report of the Company before
submitting the same to the Board.

To oversee the financial reporting system and internal
control procedures of the Company

During the Year, the audit committee has convened four
meetings, at which, they have primarily discussed and
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RAFEE BEREZEeHXERNAAZEH
ALE%J REEMETE FHEKFEE

reviewed the quarterly, interim and annual results and have WL A E A EPEAEIE FETT T & R
discussed and considered the internal control procedures of Eﬁi%q CEREEMHFEERMAT
the Group. The attendance of each Director is set out below:
Attendance
in 2011
R-——%
B HH S =
(%)
Independent non-executive Directors BWIUFRITES
Mr. Lo Wai Hung EEEEE 100%
Mr. Shi Huan A UE % A
(resigned on 15th August, 2011) (RZE—F NAT+HBET) 100%
Mr. Luan Jian Ping BE¥ist
(resigned on 15th March, 2012) (RZZE—ZF=ATHEE) 100%
Mr. Li Jia Miao FHRBITEE 100%
Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong ERfR 2 £+
(appointed on 10th October, 2011) (RZZFE——FTATBEEZE) 100%
Non-executive Director FERMITES
Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua JEREE 2+ 100%
The scope of responsibilities of the audit committee is BZZE8eMBE %ﬁITE’\$ CIS&ES
available on the websites of Company and the Stock EBHMAXZAERATHULER-
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Audit committee (continued)

There was no disagreement between the audit committee
and the Board in respect of the selection, appointment,
resignation or removal of external auditors during the year of
2011,

The audit committee can consult independent professional
advice in accordance with stated procedures at the expense
of the Company.

In 2011, the audit fees paid to the external auditors by the
Company was approximately RMB1,900,000.

Mandate Granted to the Board

The Board should assume the responsibility for the leadership
and monitoring of the Company, and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company. The
responsibilities of the Board are defined explicitly in the
Articles of Association of the Company.

(1) to be responsible for convening shareholders’ meetings
and report on its work at shareholders’ meetings;

(2) to implement the resolutions passed at shareholders’
meetings;

(3) to determine the business plans and investment plans of
the Company;

(4) to formulate the annual fiscal budgets and final
accounts of the Company;

(5) to formulate profit distribution proposals and loss
recovery proposals of the Company;

(6) to formulate proposals for increasing or reducing of the
registered capital of the Company and proposals for
issue of debentures of the Company;

(7) to draft proposals for the merger, division and

dissolution of the Company;
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Mandate Granted to the Board (continued)

(8)

(10)

(11

(12)

The

to determine the establishment of the internal
management bodies of the Company;

to appoint or dismiss the general manager of the
Company, and to appoint or dismiss the deputy general
manager and other senior management, including
the person in charge of finance, pursuant to the
recommendations of the general manager, as well as to
determine their compensations;

to formulate the basic management system of the
Company;

to formulate proposals for amendments to the Articles
of Association of the Company; and

to exercise other functions as stipulated by the articles
of association or granted by the shareholders’ meetings.

Board has granted authority to the chief executive

officer to implement the following strategies and to be
responsible for the day-to-day operation:

(1)

to be in charge of the management of production and
operation and to organize the implementation of the
resolutions of the Board;

to organize the implementation of the annual business
plans and investment plans of the Company;

to draft proposals for the establishment of internal
management bodies of the Company;

to draft the basis management system of the Company;

to formulate the basic rules and regulations of the
Company;

to propose the appointment or removal of the deputy
general manager and other senior management,
including the person in charge of finance, of the
Company;
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Mandate Granted to the Board (continued)

(7) to appoint or dismiss the management personnel other
than those required to be appointed or dismissed by the
Board; and

(8) to exercise other functions granted by the Articles of
Association and the Board.

The chief executive officer grants authorisation to chief
financial officers, and senior management within his terms of
reference.

The Board is supported by three committees, namely
the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
nomination committee (to be set up subject to shareholder
meeting to be held on 21st May, 2012). Each of the
committees has its defined terms of reference covering its
duties, rights and functions. The chairmen of the respective
committees report to the Board regularly and make
recommendations on matters discussed as appropriate.

Communications with shareholders

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on
each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual Director.

The shareholders’ meeting provides an effective forum
for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The
chairman, together with the chairmen or members of
the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
nomination committee are available to answer shareholders’
questions.

The procedures demanding for a poll and the rights of
shareholders to demand for a poll are included in the notice
of shareholders’ meeting and the accompanying circular.
The relevant procedures are explained at the shareholders’
meetings.

The external auditor has been appointed as the scrutineer to
ensure the votes cast are properly counted and recorded.

The results of the poll have been posted on the websites of

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Company
on the business day following the meeting.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Communications with shareholders (continued)

Furthermore, the Company continues to enhance the
ongoing communications amongst the shareholders,
investors and analysts, including:

e  establishing specialized bodies and employing staff to
serve investors and analysts and answer their relevant
questions;

e arranging site visits to the production bases of
the Company in order to keep them abreast of
the operations and the latest developments of the
Company;

e collecting and analyzing, in a timely manner, the
respective opinions and recommendations on the
operations of the Company given by securities
analysts and investors and compiling them into reports
periodically, and selectively adopting them in the
operations of the Company;

e providing relevant information, including introduction
to the Company, the Board and corporate governance,
results of the Company, financial summary, marketing
materials of the Company and press releases on the
website of the Company; and

e taking the initiative to communicate with various
parties, particularly following the announcement of
interim, annual results and substantial investment
decisions, organizing briefings, press conferences and
one-on-one interviews with investment institutions.
Besides, the Company also regularly communicates with
investors on a one-on-one basis.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EZHEELSMNEE AR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hua Wei, age 48, is the vice chairman and
general manager of the Company and vice chairman of
Weigao Holding Company Limited (“Weigao Holding”). Mr.
Zhang studied politics and economics at the Weihai Campus
of Shandong University from 1996 to 1998. Mr. Zhang was
the deputy factory director of Weigao Holding from 1988 to
1998, and has been the general manager of Weigao Holding
since 1998. Mr. Zhang joined the Company in December
2000.

Mr. Miao Yan Guo, age 49, is an executive Director and
deputy general manager of research and development of the
Company. Mr. Miao studied Business Administration at the
Weihai Campus of Shandong University from 1999 to 2001.
Mr. Miao joined Weigao Holding in 1988 and was sales
director from 1988 to 1991, operating manager from 1991
to 1993 and head of the No. 1 branch of Weigao Holding
from 1993 to 1998. He was a deputy general manager of
Weigao Holding from 1998 to 2000. Mr. Miao joined the
Company in December 2000.

Mr. Wang Yi, age 52, is an executive Director and deputy
general manager of general affairs of the Company. Mr.
Wang studied Business Administration at the Shandong
Cadres Distance Learning University from 1994 to 1997. He
joined Weigao Holding in 1988 and was production director
from 1988 to 1989, head of the No. 2 branch of Weigao
Holding from 1989 to 1992 and manager of the No. 3
branch of Weigao Holding from 1992 to 2004. Mr. Wang
joined the Company in December 2000.

Mr. Wang Zhi Fan, age 57, is an executive Director and
deputy general manager of sales of the Company. He joined
Weigao Holding in 1988 and was the production head and
the manager of foreign trade of Weigao Holding. Mr. Wang
joined the Group in December 2000.

Mr. Wu Chuan Ming, age 53, is an executive Director
and deputy general manager of production of the Company.
Mr. Wu joined Weigao Holding in 1988. He has been the
manager of the blood transfusion branch from 1996 to
2004. He joined the Group in December 2000.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EZHEELSMNEE AR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Xue Li, age 60, is the Chairman of both the
Company and Weigao Holding. Mr. Chen founded Weigao
Holding in 1988, and was the head of it from 1988 to
1998, Mr. Chen has been elected as the chairman of the
Company since December 2000. He received the award of
Entrepreneur of Weihai Economy Development in June 2003.

Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua, age 55, is a non-executive Director
of the Company and financial deputy general manager of
Weigao Holding. Mrs. Zhou studied Business Administration
at the Weihai Campus of Shandong University from 1999 to
2001. Mrs. Zhou joined Weigao Holding in 1989 and held a
number of positions such as head of the finance division in
the finance department, manager of the finance department
and deputy general manager of Weigao Holding.

Mr. Li Bing Yung, age 62, is and has been the President
of Medtronic’s operations in the Greater China region
since February 2007. Prior to his current position, Mr. Li
served as vice president of the commercial operations
section of Medtronic, Inc. (“Medtronic”) operations in the
greater China region. Mr. Li has extensive experience in
management in the Asia Pacific region. From 1996 to 2005,
Mr. Li was with Johnson & Johnson Medical (China) Co.
Ltd. where he held a number of executive positions and he
was subsequently promoted to International Vice President
in North Asia. Mr. Li graduated with a bachelor degree in
Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong in 1976
and obtained a master degree in Business Administration
from Henley Management School of the United Kingdom in
1989. Mr. Li was appointed as a non-executive Director of
the Company on 15th December, 2008.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EZHEELSMNEE AR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Jia Miao, age 72, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Li is a senior economist and obtained a degree
in economics and management in Hohai University in
1998. Mr. Li has over 30 years of pharmaceutical related
management experiences and has been an assistant general
manager and a general manager in Nanjing Pharmaceutical
Company since he joined NPC in 1965. Prior to the
retirement of Mr. Li in 2005, he was the chairman of Nanjing
Pharmaceutical Company Limited since 2000. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 28th February, 2007.

Mr. Lo Wai Hung, age 52, obtained a bachelor degree in
Commerce from James Cook University of North Queensland,
Australia. Mr. Lo is an associate member of Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia and a fellow member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo
was appointed as an independent non-executive director,
chairman of audit committee and a member of remuneration
committee of the Company on 10th August, 2009. Mr.
Lo is also an independent non-executive director of Talent
Property Group Limited and Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings
Limited, both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, and an independent director of China
Merchants Property Development Co. Ltd., a company listed
on Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong, aged 61, senior economist and
associate chief pharmacist and has over 40 years of working
experience, particular in the area of management experience
in the pharmaceutical and healthcare products industry.
Mrs. Fu obtained a master’'s degree in engineering from
the Harbin Institute of Technology in March 1995. Mrs. Fu
was previously a workshop director, the head of the quality
control office, the office head and the vice factory manager
of The Third Harbin Pharmaceutical Factory from June
1972 to March 1999. Mrs. Fu was a director of Harbin City
Pharmaceutical Group and the general manager of Harbin
Pharmaceutical Company Limited from March 1992 to
December 1997. She was also a deputy general manager of
China Medicines Group (currently known as China National
Pharmaceutical Group) from December 1997 to January
1999 and she was a director of China Medicines Group
Corporation from January 1999 to July 2009 respectively.
Mrs. Fu was the executive deputy general manager of
China National Pharmaceutical industry Corporation from
January 1999 to January 2001. Ms. Fu was the chairman
of National Medicines Company Limited, (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) from February 2001 to
April 2008. Mrs. Fu has been a director of Shenzhen Accord
Pharmaceutical Company Ltd. (a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange) since April 2008 and was the
chairman from April 2008 to December 2008. Ms. Fu has
also been a director of Sinopharm Industrial Investment Co.,
Ltd. from July 2008 to December 2010. Mrs. Fu was the
general manager, duty chairman and director of Sinopharm
Group Co. Ltd., (a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange) during the period from February 2006
to December 2009, and December 2009 to January 2011
respectively.

Mrs. Fu is currently the chairman of China Association of
Pharmaceutical Commerce and a member of the Thirteenth
Shanghai Municipal People’s Congress and she joined the
Company in October 2011.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EZHEELSMNEE AR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Supervisors

The Company has a committee of Supervisors whose
primary duty is to supervise the senior management of the
Company, including the Board, Directors, managers and
other senior officers. The function of the committee of
Supervisors is to ensure that the senior management of the
Company acts in the interests of the Company, and does
not violate the rights of the Company’s shareholders and
employees. The committee of Supervisors reports to the
shareholders in general meetings. The articles of association
provides that the committee of Supervisors has the right
to investigate the Group’s financial affairs; to supervise
the directors, general manager and other senior officers of
the Company in the event that they contravene any laws,
administrative regulations or the articles of association in
the performance of their duties; to require the Directors,
general managers and other senior management to rectify
any activities committed by them that is harmful to the
interests of the Company; to examine financial reports,
result reports, profit distribution plans and other financial
documents prepared by the Board to be submitted to
shareholders in general meeting, and in appropriate cases, to
appoint certified accountants or certified practicing auditors
in the name of the Company to assist in such review; to
propose the convening of extraordinary general meetings of
shareholders; to represent the Company during negotiations
with the Directors or to initiate legal proceedings against
the Directors; and other functions and powers given
by the shareholders in general meeting. The committee
of Supervisors currently comprises the following three
members:

Mrs. Bi Dong Mei, age 48, is a supervisor of the Company
and the finance manager of the subsidiaries of the Company.
Mrs. Bi graduated from the Economic Management
Department of Shandong Cadres Distance Learning
University in 1997. She joined Weigao Holding in December
1988 and has been the head of the finance division and the
deputy manager of the infusion sets branch from 2001 to
2004. She joined the Company in December 2000.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EZHEELSMNEE AR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Supervisors (continued)

Mr. Miao Hai Sheng, age 39, is a supervisor of the
Company and the finance manager of the subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Miao graduated from the Weihai Campus
of Shandong University in 1997, majoring in operation
management. He joined Weigao Holding in 1991 and has
been the accountant, finance director, the labour and
management officer of Weigao Holding. He joined the
Company in December 2000.

Ms. Chen Xiao Yun, age 38, is a supervisor of the
Company and the finance manager. Ms. Chen studied
financial accounting at the Shandong Broadcast and
Television University from 1994 to 1998. She joined Weigao
Holding in July 1991 and was the head of the finance
division in finance department and the assistant to the
manager of infusion sets branch. She joined the Company in
December 2000.

Senior Management

Mr. Ju Hong Feng, age 37, is the chief financial officer
of the Company. Mr. Ju graduated from in industry and
commerce management from University of Shandong and
studied in an advanced business administration program
administered by the People’s University of China from 2002
to 2004. Mr. Ju joined the Company in 2002 and has been
the manager of financial and accounts department of the
Company. Mr. Ju has over 10 years of valuable experiences in
finance and accounting industry.

Mr. Chen Xiao Tong, age 45, is the head of production
of the Company. Mr. Chen obtained a diploma in
economics and management from Shandong Broadcasting
and Television University and Mr. Chen join the Group in
1992 and has been the sales manager and deputy general
manager in subsidiaries of the Group. Mr Chen has over 20
years of valuable experiences in medical device industry.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EZHEELSMNEE AR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Senior Management (continued)

Mr. Song Xiu Shan, age 48, is the head of sales
department of the Company. Mr. Song was graduated from
University of Shandong, major in corporate administration in
2001, and studied in an advanced business administration
program administered by the People University of China
from 2002 to 2004. Mr. Song joined Weigao Holding in June
1992, and has been the manager of the Beijing sales branch
of Weigao Holding, marketing manager of infusion device
branch of Weigao Holding, and has extensive experience in
corporate marketing. He joined the Company in December
2000.

Mr. Zhou De Jun, age 53, is the deputy general manager
(blood transfusion division) of the Company. Mr. Zhou
obtained a diploma of economics and management from
the Communist Party Colleague of Shandong province. Mr.
Zhou joined the Company in November 1992 and has been
the deputy manager and deputy general manager of the
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhou has about 20 years of
valuable experience in medical device industry in China.

Ms. Chan Yuk Ying, Phyllis, age 51, is the head
of business development and investor relations and is
a chartered accountant with the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia and joined the Company in
May 2006. Ms. Chan has over 20 years of experience in
accounting and corporate finance.

Ms. Wong Miu Ling, Phillis, age 43, is the company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Wong joined the Company
in May 2006. She is an associate member of both the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Wong
has over 15 years of experience in corporate finance and
management.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEH& W&

The Directors are pleased to submit their annual report and
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2011.

The Company was established and registered as a joint stock
company with limited liability in the PRC under the Company
Law of the PRC on 28th December, 2000. The H Shares
of the Company were listed on GEM board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
27th February, 2004 and were transferred to Main board of
the Stock Exchange on 29th July, 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Based in Shandong province, the Company is principally
engaged in the research and development, production and
sale of single-use medical devices. The Group has a wide
range of products, which includes: 1) consumables (infusion
set, syringes, medical needle, blood bags, blood sampling
products, and other consumables); 2) orthopedic products;
and 3) blood purification consumables. The Group’s products
are sold under its own brand names, including “Jierui” and
“Wego Ortho”. The products are sold throughout the PRC
and exported to overseas. The Company has a nationwide
sales network and an extensive customer base of over 5,069
healthcare organizations, including 2,951 hospitals and 414
blood stations.

RESULTS, ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING,
CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS AND
DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December,
2011 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 68 of this annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Saturday, 21st April, 2012 to Monday, 21st May,
2012 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of determining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “Annual General Meeting”), during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to qualify for attending the Annual
General Meeting, shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor
Standard Limited at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 20th April, 2012.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (continued)

In order to qualify for attending the annual
general meeting:-

Latest time to lodge in the transfer
instrument accompanied by
the share certificates

4:30 p.m., Friday,
20th April, 2012

Closure of register of members of
the Company for attendance of
the annual general meeting

Saturday,
21st April, 2012 to
Monday, 21st May,
2012

Latest time to lodge in the reply slip  4:30 p.m., Monday,

30th April, 2012

Date of annual general meeting Monday,

21st May, 2012

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board recommended a final dividend of RMB0.03 per
share (inclusive of tax). The total amount of final dividends
to be distributed shall be approximately RMB134,291,000, of
which dividends paid to non-resident corporate shareholders
will be subject to the corporate tax applicable on the PRC
sourced income pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income
Tax Law and the Regulations on the Implementation of the
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law that became effective on
1st January, 2008 and the applicable tax rate is 10%. The
listed issuer will be responsible for withholding the relevant
amount of tax from the dividend payment and the dividends
to be received by the non-resident corporate shareholders
will be net of withholding tax. The proposal to declare and
pay the final dividend will be submitted to the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting to be held on Monday, 21st May,
2012. Final dividend for non-listed shares will be distributed
and paid in Renminbi whereas dividend for H shares will be
declared in Renminbi and paid in Hong Kong dollars.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Saturday, 26th May, 2012 to Thursday, 31st May, 2012 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of determining shareholders’
entitlement to final dividend for the year ended 31st
December, 2011, during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for
entitlement of final dividend, shareholders should ensure
that all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Tricor Standard Limited at 26/F, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
no later than 4:30 p.m. on 25th May, 2012.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEH& W&

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (continued)

In order to qualify to entitle the final dividend for
the year ended Saturday, 31st December, 2011:-

Latest time to lodge in the transfer 4:30 PM.,
instrument accompanied by Friday, 25th
the share certificates May, 2012

Closure of register of members of Saturday,

the Company for the entitlement of
final dividend for the year ended
31st December, 2011

26th May, 2012
to Thursday,
31st May, 2012

Record date for entitlement of
final dividend

Thursday,
31st May, 2012

Despatch date of final dividend Friday, 15th June,

2012

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment during
the year of 2011 at an aggregate cost of approximately
RMB1,143.6 million in order to enhance its production
capacity. Details of movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31st December, 2011, there was a total issued share
capital of 4,476,372,324 shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) which include:
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B & E Bivastt

Non-listed Shares FELEMRD 2,592,640,000 57.9%

H Shares HA& 1,883,732,324 42 1%

The changes in share capital of the Company is set out in 7N/ &) Hy i AN % &h & 70 B 75 3]k X B 5
note 32 to the Financial Statements. 32
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2011, an amount of approximately
RMB1,464,994,000 (2010: RMB600,537,000) standing
to the credit of the Company’s reserve account, which
is computed based on the lower of, (i) in accordance
with the PRC accounting standards and regulation, the
aggregate amount of profit after taxation for the year and
(i) in accordance with Hong Kong accounting standards
and regulation, the retained profit brought forward after
deduction of the current year's appropriation to the statutory
surplus reserve and statutory public welfare fund.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the Year were:

Executive directors

Mr. Zhang Hua Wei
Mr. Miao Yan Guo
Mr. Wang Yi

Mr. Wang Zhi Fan
Mr. Wu Chuan Ming

Non-executive directors

Mr. Chen Xue Li

Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua

Mr. Li Bing Yung

Mr. Jean-Luc Butel (resigned on 7th March, 2012)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Lo Wai Hung
Mr. Luan Jian Ping (resigned on 15th March, 2012)

Mr. Shi Huan (resigned on 15th August, 2011)

Mr. Li Jia Miao
Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong (appointed on 10th October, 2011)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEH& W&

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

Each of the directors entered into service agreements with
the Company. The service contracts were signed for an initial
term of three years, unless and until terminated by either
party by giving notice to the other party with three months’
notice in writing. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, the service agreements of all directors are
renewable for successive three-year terms upon expiry.

The service agreements for directors do not stipulate for
any amount of remuneration or bonus payment to be
paid for services provided. The executive directors are paid
with a fixed sum of annual salaries for holding positions
in the Company and entitled to welfare benefits (including
retirement benefits and medical insurance) in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC. All four
non-executive directors waived their directors’ remuneration
for the year ended 31st December, 2011 and accepted a
nominal annual fee of RMB1.00.

According to the respective service agreements entered into
between the Company and each of the four independent
non-executive directors, Mr. Shi Huan (resigned on 15th
August, 2011), Mr. Luan Jian Ping (resigned on 15th March,
2012), Mr. Li Jia Miao and Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong who receive
an annual fee of RMB72,000. Mr. Lo Wai Hung received an
annual fee of HK$120,000. Mr. Shi Huan resigned on 15th
August, 2011 and receive an annual fee on a pro-rata basis
during the Year.

Apart from the foregoing, no directors have a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND LONG
POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31st December, 2011, the interests of the directors
in the share capital of the Company and their associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong (“SFO")), (i) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provision of the SFO); or (ii) which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in the
Listing Rules:

(i) Long positions of non-listed Shares of
RMBO0.10 each of the Company

ESRRMINESRETE

R_ZE—F+_A=+—"H EFRNAK
NN ERBEEE (EEREBEME
STIEFHFMBEGKA ([BHFEKBEK
Bl 1) BXVE) 2 AT HEB )R IEEH
NEIE GBI EXVEET RS H /AN E KR
NE R R ATz Eam (BIERIEE S &
BERAMEBEEXEERIEIHREE
BEREmSOAR) ()G TR ARAF
BIEFESFNAERAIEISHEAGFTECE
oft 2t k(iR IR ETH R BIFTE B
I RARESETELRR S ZIZESTR
([MZ2<pH ) MBS ARQE) M7
ZHEZIR

(i) RELFEHREEARK0.10TH
Nyl du ok

Approximate

percentage of

Total the issued

number of share capital

Name of Types of non-listed of the

Director interests Capacity Shares Company

HFELE

ERTEREDH

EENA =85 5 3 JE b 7 B {7 #8 BY @raask

Mr. Zhang Hua Wei Personal Beneficial owner 32,400,000 0.72%
RERTEE EPN BEmEA A

Mr. Miao Yan Guo Personal Beneficial owner 23,400,000 0.52%
R {EPN EmEA A

Mr. Wang Yi Personal Beneficial owner 23,400,000 0.52%
FTREE A EmEA A

Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua Personal Beneficial owner 15,300,000 0.34%
ERE L £ EPN BEmEA A

Mr. Wang Zhi Fan Personal Beneficial owner 8,100,000 0.18%
TEBEE {EPN EmEA A

Mr. Wu Chuan Ming Personal Beneficial owner 7,200,000 0.16%
RERAKE A EmEA A

In addition, Mr. Chen Lin, son of Mr. Chen Xue Li is
holder of the Company’s 200,000 non-listed Shares,
representing 0.005% of the issue share capital of the

Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND LONG
POSITIONS IN SHARES (continued)

(ii) Long positions in the registered capital of the
ultimate holding company, Weigao Holding,
an associated corporation of the Company

EEREOHERIREFR ()

(i) RERERAOFARERR (FLF
HEREE) EMEEFHEFR

Approximate
percentage of
the registered

Amount of capital of
Name of registered Weigao
director Capacity capital Holding
15 B = HE B
EMREE
EEfS 513 EMREEH @#raask
Mr. Chen Xue Li Beneficial owner 36,600,000 30.00%
BREZF &£ EmEA A
Mr. Zhang Hua Wei Beneficial owner 29,280,000 24.00%
RER KL EmEAA
Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua Beneficial owner 14,579,000 11.95%
JEME £ EnEAA
Mr. Miao Yan Guo Beneficial owner 7,320,000 6.00%
i IE B 5 A4 EmEA A
Mr. Wang Yi Beneficial owner 7,320,000 6.00%
EREE EmEAA
Mr. Wang Zhi Fan Beneficial owner 2,610,800 2.14%
FTEBEE EnEAA
Mr. Wu Chuan Ming Beneficial owner 2,257,000 1.85%
RERLE EnEA A

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors
nor their associates had any interests or short positions
in any shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at the date of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debenture of
the Company granted to any directors or their respective
associates or were any such rights exercised by them; or
was the Company, its ultimate holding company or any
subsidiaries of its ultimate holding company or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire such rights in the
Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December, 2011, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to BIRE
Section 336 of the SFO recorded that other than the interests
disclosed above in respect of certain Directors, the following
shareholder had notified the Company of relevant interest in

the issued share capital of the Company.

FEBRR

2

R-ZE——F+-A=+—8 &REQF
ENHEIEGIE336EFENEE
KERELZMAR B EXHEEBRETE
EWRERIN THIRREHMEAAFER
RARBBITRAFNEBER -

Percentage Percentage

Number of of issued of total

non-listed non-listed  Number of issued

Name of Shareholder Capacity shares Shares H Shares share capital

HERT HERT

ELHRR BEEHED

BREE 517 FETRHEE B HEE® B Bl

Weigao Holding Beneficial owner 2,129,755,676 82.2% - 47.6%
BeERk ERBEAA

Medtronic Holding Switzerland GmbH Beneficial owner 322,884,324 12.5% 294,096,324 13.8%
EnHEAA

Save as disclosed above, the following shareholders have
disclosed their relevant interests or long positions in the

B EXWEEIN TIBRREHBREFR
ARREBTRATHEENEBEREDR X

issued share capital of the Company. bR o
Number of % of
H shares issued H
Name of substantial shareholder interested share capital
BHAERE HERT
FTERREE HEE® B HERERFBSL
Medtronic Holding Switzerland
G.m.b.H. 294,096,324(L) 15.6%
Medtronic, Inc. 294,096,324(L) 15.6%
JPMorgan Chase & Co. 289,499,164(L) 15.4%
3,884,334(S) 0.2%
279,942,830(P) 14.9%
Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited 169,828,000(L) 9.0%
Liu Yang 169,828,000(L) 9.0%
Norges Bank 123,216,000(L) 6.5%
Baillie Gifford & Co 118,388,000(L) 6.3%
Callander Alex 118,388,000(L) 6.3%
Morrison Elaine 118,388,000(L) 6.3%
Plowden Charles 118,388,000(L) 6.3%
Tait Anthony 118,388,000(L) 6.3%
Telfer Andrew 118,388,000(L) 6.3%
Warden Alison 118,388,000(L) 6.3%
Capital Research and
Management Company 114,662,000(L) 6.1%
The Capital Group Companies, Inc. 104,515,000(L) 5.6%
T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. and
its affiliates 95,245,472(L) 5.0%
Note: (L) - Long Position, (S)- Short Position, (P) - Lending Pool MeE: (B - (S)—%XE P —fEH&RM

*Source: Website of Hong Kong Stock Exchange
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2011, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 10.47% of the total sales for the year and
sales to the largest customer included therein accounted
for 7.36% of the total sales of the year. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 28.81% of the
total purchases for the year and purchases to the largest
supplier included therein accounted for 8.1% of the total
sales of the year. During the Year, none of the directors of
the Company or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the top five customers and suppliers of
the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive right under the
Company's articles of association and the laws of the PRC,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Pursuant to the terms of the subscription and sale and
purchase agreement dated 18th December, 2007 entered
into between the Company, Weigao Holding Company
Limited, certain management shareholders, Medtronic, Inc.
and Medtronic Holding Switzerland GmbH (“Medtronic
Switzerland”), so long as Medtronic Switzerland continuously
and beneficially owns at least five percent (5%) of the
enlarged issued share capital of the Company in the form
of H Shares, it shall be entitled to certain pre-emptive
rights in the event that the Company proposes to issue
H Shares or securities that are convertible into H Shares.
Provided that Medtronic Switzerland maintains the five
percent (5%) threshold requirement described immediately
above, the Company shall, prior to issuing any H Shares or
securities that are convertible into H Shares, give Medtronic
Switzerland notice in writing specifying (a) the number of
H Shares it proposes to issue, and (b) the price at which
such H Shares are being issued. Upon receipt of such notice,
Medtronic Switzerland shall have the right, but not the
obligation, to subscribe for up to such number of H shares
(or securities that are convertible into H Shares), at the same
price and on the same terms and conditions as set out in the
notice, as necessary to maintain its pro rata equity ownership
of the Company.
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COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF
INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders as
defined under the “Listing Rules” of the Company or their
respective associates has any interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or
has any other conflict of interests with the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company recorded transactions under
the following announced agreements which constitute
continuing connected transactions, and are subject to
reporting and announcement requirements and exempt from
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule
14A.23 of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. On 1st January, 2010, HeZe Weigao Hygenic Materials
and Products Company Limited (“HeZe Weigao”), a
subsidiary of Weigao Holding entered into a medical
supplies agreement with the Company regarding the
supply of medical products for an annual cap of less
than RMB5.0 million for the year from 1st January,
2011 to 31st December, 2011. No transactions were
recorded during the year under review.

2. On 11th December, 2009, Weigao Medical Materials
Company Limited (“Weigao Medical Materials”) entered
into a supply agreement with Jierui Subsidiary regarding
the supply of packaging materials and printing ink by
Weigao Medical Materials to Jierui Subsidiary with a
cap of less than RMB3.0 million for the year ended 31st
December, 2011. For the year under review, the actual
amount of transaction for the year was approximately
RMB1.8 million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BFERERZS (&)
(continued)
On 26th March, 2010, the Company entered into a 3. —E-ZEF=ZAZ+XB AR

supplemental agreement with Weihai Weigao Fusen
Medical Materials Company Limited (“ Weigao Fusen”),
a 70% owned subsidiary of Weigao Holding, pursuant
to which the Company purchased from Weigao Fusen
surgical suture, medical dressing and surgical tape with
an annual cap of less than RMB25.0 million for the year
ended 31st December, 2011. For the year under review,
the actual amount of transaction was approximately
RMB15.5 million.

7) B = 1 A HE B 70 % 1 2 1Y FfY /BB
RAIBBEREREAVMBERA
A (TEEERDFILERTHE B
M RARRARREBEE-_ET——F+=
A=+—HIFERBRSEHREE
Firsg o5 BRBREFHTRE
FEERLHNARE25000,000
TLoRBEFE BERXSEHAEA
K #15,500,0007T °

On 20th August, 2010, Weigao Orthopaedic and 4. R-_Z—ZFN\A-_+H BEe8&
Medtronic SD entered into OEM agreement regarding BB Medtronic SDE] R & R E
the manufacturing and sale of orthopaedic products WE NAEEBESERREEC
by Weigao Orthopaedic to Medtronic SD for the year E——F+TA=+—BLEFER
ended 31st December, 2011 with a cap of less than Medtronic SD& & A 35 & &R
RMB28.0 million. The actual amount of transaction for Eam - FRADHAKRE28,000,000
the year was approximately RMB27.1 million. T FEEBRRIBHNRARE
27,100,0007T °
On 18th December, 2007, the Company and Medtronic 5. R-ZZ+HF+_-AF+ N\ H AR

International Limited (“Medtronic”) entered into a
distribution joint venture agreement ("Distribution JV
Agreement”) in respect of the establishment of the
distribution joint venture in the PRC which specialize in
the sale and distribution of orthopedic medical device
products in the PRC. On 15th March, 2011, Weigao
Orthopaedic entered into an agreement to revise the
annual cap to RMB250.0 million for the year ended
31st December, 2011. During the year under review, the
actual amount of products sold by the Company to the
Distribution JV was approximately RMB231.1 million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

On 30th December, 2008, Weigao Jierui Medical
Products Company Limited (“Jierui Subsidiary”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into the packaging material supply agreement for a
period of three years from 1st January, 2009 to 31st
December, 2011 with Weigao Pharmaceutical, a non
wholly owned subsidiary of Weigao Holding, for the
sales of packaging materials from lJierui Subsidiary to
Weigao Pharmaceutical with an annual cap of less than
RMB9.0 million. For the year under review, the actual
transaction amount was approximately RMB7.2 million.

On 4th May, 2009, Weihai Weigao Biotech Company
Limited (“Weigao Biotech”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of Weigao Holding entered into a supply agreement
with the Company for the supply of sterilizers to the
Company by Weigao Biotech with an annual cap
of less than RMB2.0 million. During the year under
review, there was no transaction recorded under the
agreement.

On 15th November, 2010, Weihai Weigao Construction
Company Limited (“Weigao Construction™), a subsidiary
of Weigao Holding entered into a master fitting out
contract with the Company regarding the provision
of fitting out work and decoration services to the
Company with an annual cap of less than RMB20.0
million for the year ended 31st December, 2011. For the
year under review, the actual transaction amount was
approximately RMB7.1 million.

On 15th November, 2010, Weihai Weigao Blood
Purification Products Company Limited, (“Weigao
Blood”), a 70% owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into the hemodialysis dialysis fluid supply
agreement with Shandong Weigao Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Weigao Pharmaceutical”), a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of Weigao Holding for the
purchase of hemodialysis dialysis fluid, substitution
liquid, potassium power and calcium power with an
annual cap of less than RMB15.0 million for the year
ended 31st December, 2011. For the year under review,
the actual amount of transaction was approximately
RMB8.2 million.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

10. On 15th November, 2010, Weihai Weigao Medical

11.

12.

Materials Company Limited, (“Weigao Materials), a
100% owned subsidiary of the Weigao Holding entered
into the sanitary supplies agreement with the Company
with an annual cap of less than RMB15.0 million for the
year ended 31st December, 2011. For the year under
review, the actual amount of transaction was RMB7.3
million.

On 15th November, 2010, Shenyang Weigao Jinbao
Trading Company Limited, (“Shenyang lJinbao"”), a
100% owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into the dialysis consumables supply agreement with
Shandong Weigao Pharmaceutical Company Limited
("Weigao Pharmaceutical”), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of Weigao Holding for the purchase of
dialysis consumables, such as dialysis powder with an
annual cap of less than RMB2.0 million for the year
from 1st January, 2011 to 31st December, 2011. For
the year under review, the Group disposed its equity
interest in Shenyang Jinbao in March 2011 and there
was no further continuing connected transaction during
the Year..

On 1st April, 2011, Shandong Weigao Automated
Equipment Company Limited (“Weigao Automated”),
the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
Weihai Weigao Qiquan Medical Company Limited
("Weigao Qiquan”), a 60% owned subsidiary of
Weigao Holding entered into the supply agreement,
pursuant to which Weigao Qiquan will supply Weigao
Automated with tailor-made production machines,
equipment, related parts and accessories with a cap
of less than RMB12.0 million for the period from 1st
April, 2011 to 31st December, 2011. For the year
under review, the actual transaction amount was
approximately RMB60,000.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

On 27th May, 2011, the Company entered into disposal
pressure monitoring Device Company Limited (“Weihai
Weigao Medical”) kit supply agreement with Weihai
Weigao Medical regarding the supply of disposal
pressure monitoring kit by Weihai Weigao Medical
to the Company. The proposed caps for the period
from 27th May, 2011 to 31st December, 2011 was
RMB2.0 million. The actual transaction amount was
approximately RMB0.73 million.

On 19th August, 2011, the Company entered into an
agreement with Shandong Weigao Medical Packaging
Products Company Limited (“"Weigao Medical
Packaging”) (WERBESEEREL R AR QA AF)
regarding the supply of multi-layer packaging materials
for syringes products by Weigao Medical packaging
to the Company. The annual cap for the period from
19th August, 2011 to 31st December, 2011 was
RMB6.0 million. The actual transaction amount was
approximately RMB2.0 million.

On 19th August, 2011, Jierui Subsidiary entered into an
agreement with Weigao Medical Packaging regarding
the supply of multi-layer packaging materials for
needles and IV catheters by Weigao Medical packaging
to Jierui Subsidiary. The annual cap for the period
from 19th August, 2011 to 31st December, 2011 was
RMB5.0 million. The actual transaction amount was
approximately RMBO0.57 million.

On 19th August, 2011, the Company entered into a
contract with Weigao Qichuan regarding provision of
fitting-out services, including installation of purified
ventilation and fire detection systems at production
plants by Weiago Qichuan to the Company. The actual
transaction amount was RMB7.3 million.

On 20th March, 2008, Weigao Holding, a controlling
shareholder of the Company as the landlord entered
into the tenancy agreement with the Company as the
tenant in respect of the lease of premises located at
369 Wenhua Road West, Weihai, Shandong, the PRC.
The annual rental paid by the Company was RMB2.1
million in 2011.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEH& W&

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The above continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company. The independent non-executive directors have
confirmed that the continuing connected transactions have
been entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company; (b) on normal commercial terms
or on terms no less favourable than those available to or
from independent third parties; (c) in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Directors, including the independent non-executive
directors, of the Company are of the view that all of the
above transactions were on normal commercial terms and in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company
and that the terms of the relevant agreements were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company confirms that the continuing connected
transactions as disclosed above fall under the definition of
continuing connected transactions in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an audit committee with terms of
reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the audit committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control system
of the Company. The audit committee has four members
comprising Mr. Lo Wai Hung, Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong and Mr.
Li Jia Miao, being independent non-executive directors and
Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua, a non-executive director.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE= R

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year, the audit committee held four meetings
and the committee had reviewed and approved the annual
report for the year ended 31st December, 2010 and the first
three quarterly reports of the year 2011. On 15th March,
2012, the audit committee had reviewed and approved the
financial statements for the year ended 31st December,
2011.

The unaudited quarterly and interim results and audited
annual results for the year ended 31st December, 2011 have
been reviewed by the audit committee, which was of the
opinion that the preparation of such results complied with
the applicable accounting standards and requirements and
that adequate disclosure has been made.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Xue Li

Chairman

Weihai, Shandong, the PRC
15th March, 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT Y&~/ /% & Bl s &5 =

BBEIEBE8H
AOES—E3512

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER
COMPANY LIMITED

LEEESREEASS FRHAKRGARLR

(A joint stock limited company established in the People’s
Republic of China)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the "Group"”) set out on pages 68 to 164, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31st December, 2011, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IUERE 5 EEE
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Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
35/F One Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT Y&~/ /% & Bl &E =

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT Y&~/ /% & Bl s &5 =

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as
at 31st December, 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

15th March, 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME %4 2 mEIE A&

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —T——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2011 2010
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
—E——% —_T—ITF
Bt 5 ARBTFRE ARETE
Revenue WA 3,180,577 2,462,557
Cost of sales HE X AR (1,420,461) (1,102,858)
Gross profit EH 1,760,116 1,359,699
Other income, gains and losses HAaA - = R EE 10 42,217 104,158
Distribution costs 2 BN (633,441) (501,324)
Administrative expenses THAX (285,781) (262,188)
Finance costs Bh & B AR 8 (1,142) (9,658)
Share of profit of jointly JE b £ [R5 B B2 & F
controlled entities 99,842 153,057
Share of profit of associates iy RN P 51,419 44,140
Gain on disposal of HE—KERIEHEE
a jointly controlled entity Wz 11, 34 2,568,534 —
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR BB 33 (9,258) =
Profit before taxation B 75 Al A 3,592,506 887,884
Income tax expense FREH R < 9 (124,472) (85,532)
Profit for the year F N M 12 3,468,034 802,352
Other comprehensive income H A2 mE KA
Exchange differences arising on BMEBIINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations M =58 (573) 665
Share of other comprehensive et E N Al 2 Efh
income of associates ZEKA (13,722) -
Total comprehensive income FREEBVALE
for the year 3,453,739 803,017
Profit for the year attributable to: THEBEREFERRAM
Owners of the Company KRR A 3,462,172 799,072
Non-controlling interests SRR AR #E 2 5,862 3,280
3,468,034 802,352
Total comprehensive income THZEEEZE YA
attributable to: HARE
Owners of the Company PN/ ﬂ%ﬁ/\ 3,447,877 799,737
Non-controlling interests FE 128 AR 2 5,862 3,280
3,453,739 803,017
(Restated)
(&e=E35)
Earnings per share — basic ERAN-ER 15 AE®RMBO.78T ~ ARHRMB0.197
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #r& BAF

FARM IR

At 31st December, 2011 R=ZE——F+=-fF=+—H

2011 2010
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
—_E—KF —ZT-FF
Bt 5 ARBTFRE ARETE
Non-current assets EMBEE
Property, plant and equipment W% WE REE 16 2,470,492 1,411,384
Investment properties REYHE 17 3,460 14,905
Prepaid lease payments BN MHEENRIEA 18 378,499 226,953
Intangible assets BEEE 19 17,735 20,849
Interest in jointly controlled entities At EI1EHI T B2 AR 20 28,858 431,436
Interest in associates Y il/NT ko 21 2,374,267 130,127
Goodwill kS 22 202,900 202,900
Deferred tax assets BIER IR B 30 15,757 12,505
Other receivables — receivable Hh fE W R — e
after one year — F1& Y H 9,046 =
5,501,014 2,451,059
Current assets MBEE
Inventories T8 23 463,001 380,222
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 I F b & W5k 24 1,449,242 1,055,751
Pledged bank deposits EEBIRITFR 25 107,472 134,109
Bank balances and cash RITHB LIRS 26 1,851,238 628,223
3,870,953 2,198,305
Current liabilities nBBRE
Trade and other payables JERTE 5 K& B b FET X 27 1,025,415 838,534
Bank borrowings — repayable IRITIER—ER—F
within one year R1EE 28 21,003 26,418
Tax payable JE A8 18 35,504 41,872
1,081,922 906,824
Net current assets B E EFRE 2,789,031 1,291,481
8,290,045 3,742,540
Capital and reserves BEARKFEE
Share capital [N 32 447,637 215,256
Reserves ffE 7,754,354 3,411,154
Equity attributable to owners of RNARHEE AE(h#ER
the Company 8,201,991 3,626,410
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR 7 2R 9,538 7,463
Total equity A% 1 4B 5 8,211,529 3,633,873

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IR =5 EE

B TRGRMBERA A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #R& BAf& AR R 3%

At 31st December, 2011 R=ZZE——F+_A=+—8H

2011 2010
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB’000
—E——F —Z-ZTF
Bt &3 ARBTRE ARETT
Non-current liability EMBEE

Bank borrowings — repayable RITER—BER—F1&
after one year (=P 28 63,009 88,303
Other payables H h & 1~ 518 29 10,445 20,364
Deferred income EEWA 31 5,062 -
78,516 108,667
8,290,045 3,742,540

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 164
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 15th March, 2012 and are signed on its behalf
by:

Chen Xue Li
REF
DIRECTOR
EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &4z sk

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HE_-ZE——4+_H —HIEFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
EACE EPN

Share  Statutory Non-

Share  premium surplus  Translation Other  Retained controlling
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interests Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

(Note)

RiER  EEER
k& 11 fEf  ERER  RUEE  REEY it FERNG @it
ARETT  ARETR ARETL ARMTR ARBTR ARETZ ARETR ARETRL ARETR

(i)
At 1st January, 2010 RZE-Z45-F-H 107,628 1,393,170 11,217 (637) - 1,328,305 2,939,683 3,183 2,942,866
Profit for the year RER R - - - - - 799,072 799,072 3,280 802,352
Exchange differences arising on HEBNERELEN
translation of foreign operations EiZR - - - 665 - - 665 - 665
Total comprehensive income for the year £ 2 EMALE - - - 665 - 799,072 799,737 3,80 803,017
Capital injection from FERERTE
non-controlling shareholder - - - - - - - 1,000 1,000
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTATRE - - 52,656 - = (52,656 = = =
Dividend paid BRRE - - - - - (1130100 (113,010) - (113010)
Bonus issue of shares ARET 107,628 (107,628) = - = - = = =
At 31st December, 2010 RZE-E4+-A=1-H 215,256 1,285,542 163,873 28 - 1,961,711 3,626,410 7,463 3,633,873
Profit for the year REFER - - - - - 3462172 3462172 5862 3468034
Exchange differences arising on HEBNERELEN
translation of foreign operations EiZR - - - (573) - - (573) - (573)
Share of exchange differences arising on fE{F 128 B E A7)
translation of an associate EANELZR - - - (16,383) - - (16,383) = (16,383)
Share of other comprehensive income of JE/EHEE 2\ A1 E ft
assoclates 2EWA - - - - 2,661 - 2,661 - 2,661
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 EHALE - - - (16,956) 2661 3462172 3447877 5862 3453739
Issue of shares ¥alk{ 8562 1,416,821 - - - - 1405383 - 140538
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTETERE - - 77,089 - - (77,089) - - -
Dividend paid Efike . = - - - 9e) (97679) - 9679)
Bonus issue of shares 1R%f 23819 (223819 - - - - - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBRR = - - - - - - (3,787) (3,787)
At 315t December, 2011 RZE-—%+-A=t-H 447,637 2,478 544 240,962 (16,928) 2,661 5,049,115 8,201,991 9,538 8,211,529
Note: The Articles of Association of the companies comprising the Company Mizt: BREARARERFEGEMALZHER
and its subsidiaries incorporated in PRC require the appropriation of AMZEARNEASEERAERESFR
10% of profit after taxation (prepared under the generally accepted B unr (REFEARSTRAGR) &
accounting principles in the PRC) each year to the statutory surplus 10% D REEERAFEHE EEEERER
reserve until the balance reaches 50% of the registered share ot 18 B0 A R ST AR AN 8950 % 4% Lk - 1R 4R
capital. According to the provisions of the Articles of Association of REBBETAARMABERNIEEE
the companies comprising the Group, in normal circumstances, the E—RIERAT EERMRFEEETRERM
statutory surplus reserve shall only be used for making up losses, EiE BRRARBEZEEREE - KEE
capitalisation into share capital and expansion of its production and RARERZRAE  ZREENRBETIEE
operation. For the capitalisation of statutory surplus reserve into share MM AR #I25% o

capital, the remaining amount of such reserve shall not be less than
25% of the registered share capital.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IURESEBEER S FERKMHER A A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #r&

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B Z=Z——F+=-A=+—HILtFE

BETRE®RK

2011 2010
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
———F _—ZT-TF
Bt 5 AR®TRT ARETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BERG
Profit before taxation B 75 A A 3,592,506 887,884
Adjustments for: IEAEH T 5 HEE -
Interest income M EWA (6,447) (5,572)
Interest expense BRI 1,142 9,658
Impairment loss on property, W% WE R E
plant and equipment BB - 2,314
Depreciation of property, M- HEREETE
plant and equipment 94,300 90,363
Depreciation of investment REMEINE
properties 300 592
Prepaid lease payments charged to #1825 H1 & A9 T8 1+F
profit or loss MEFKIA 6,062 5,242
Allowances for bad and RIBAREE
doubtful debts 16,142 19,661
Amortisation of intangible assets B & EE 3,114 3,114
Share of profit of jointly JE(h H R E 88
controlled entities i A (99,842) (153,057)
Share of profit of associates JE A& Bt = 2 Ra A (51,419) (44,140)
Unrealised profit on sales to Eﬁfﬁ’%%ﬂﬁfﬁ%’ A &Y
associates R IR A 12,594 1,700
Realised gain arising from DAV /N
establishing of an associate EENER NS 21 - (35,419)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEME WER
plant and equipment f“ﬁﬁiﬂé (Yzs) 190 129
Gain on disposal of a jointly & — H? il
controlled entity B8 E’JH& (2,568,534) =
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FM B AR
EE 33 9,258 -
Government grant received B WCER Y B #R B 5,062 -
Loss on fair value changes of AMREE A FE
convertible notes S EE 21 6,834 -
1,021,262 782,469
Movements in working capital HEEREH
Increase in inventories FEE 0 (110,304) (61,220)
Increase in trade and EWE ZER K
other receivables H th & WK IR 18 N (390,116) (222,894)
Increase in trade and other payables JEfT & 5RH K
H i & A< FRIRIE H0 234,039 127,797
Net cash generated from operations & FT15IR € F58 754,881 626,152
PRC income tax paid ENFRBEMES (134,089) (102,641)
NET CASH GENERATED BEXGHRBR&SHE
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 620,792 523,511
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #r &R E M E MWk

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HZ=—Z——F+=-_F=+—HILFE

2011 2010
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
—E——8% _—T—FTHF
Bt 5 ARBTFRE ARETE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRERG
Purchases of property, BEME BER
plant and equipment B (1,135,627) (339,441)
Prepaid lease payments made Tt EIE (189,468) (10,628)
Acquisition of a jointly i B — P 2 R
controlled entity =4 - (37,990)
Dividend income received from an W By — Faj Bt & 2 A1 AY
associate g B4 A 57,163 13,000
Proceeds from disposal of HEME  HE&
property, plant and equipment RIEFTE IR 566 2,296
Interest received =R EPS) 6,447 5,572
Withdrawal of pledged BB EFRITHERK
bank deposits 203,864 258,573
Placement of pledged bank deposits 17 A B & ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%\ (177,227) (292,424)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FRE QA 33 (3,069) -
Proceeds from disposal a jointly & — A HE R 4% %‘J
controlled entity ERBFTEMIA 34 787,920 -
NET CASH USED IN BRARBGHARESEH
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (449,431) (401,042)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES A& £
New borrowings raised ERTEXK - 4,342
Repayments of borrowings BEEK (26,145) (40,839)
Settlement of other payables 18~ B th JE 5T 3R I8 (22,000) (60,905)
Interest paid 21 F E\ (3,.357) (8,666)
Dividend paid =ENLe (297,679) (113,010)
Capital injection from FEE Hxﬂxﬁ/fé
non-controlling shareholder - 1,000
Net proceeds from issue of shares BITRD TSI F 58 1,425,383 —
NET CASH GENERATED FROM MEXBEEZR R
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,076,202 (218,078)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN BeRB&¥RD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Bm(EY) S 1,247,563 (95,609)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REMBHBEER
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR BeERY 628,223 723,167
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE SEEESBHTE
RATE CHANGES, NET 28 (24,548) 665
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REXRHBASERALER
AT END OF YEAR, representing M ERTESRERS
bank balances and cash 1,851,238 628,223

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IR E S5 EEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B HRF M T

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —T——F+-_A=+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company was established and registered as a joint
stock company with limited liability in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") under the Company Law
of the PRC on 28th December, 2000. Its immediate and
ultimate holding company is Weigao Holding Company
Limited (“Weigao Holding”), a company registered
in the PRC with limited liability. The address of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company is 312 Shi Chang Road, Weihai, Shandong
Province, PRC.

The Company's shares were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 27th
February, 2004 and the listing of the shares has been
transferred to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
since 29th July, 2010.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the research and development, production
and sale of single-use medical devices, orthopaedic
products and blood purification products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the functional currency of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %14 BA 75 5 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the

following new and revised standards, amendments and

interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs"”) issued by

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

("HKICPA™).

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2010

HKAS 24
(Revised 2009)

Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues
(Amendments)

HK (IFRIC)-Int Prepayments of a Minimum
14(Amendments) Funding Requirement

HK (IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity

Instruments

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has
had no material effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current or prior
accounting periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B4 75 5 35 Bt 2

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —T——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.
HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of
(Amendments) financial assets'
Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments3?
HKFRS 9 and Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 7 HKFRS 9 and Transaction
(Amendments) Disclosures?
HKAS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements?
HKAS 11 Joint Arrangements?
HKAS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities?
HKAS 13 Fair Value Measurement?
HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
(Amendments) Comprehensive Income®
HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of
(Amendments) underlying assets*
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits?

(Revised 2011)

HKAS 27
(Revised 2011)

HKAS 28
(Revised 2011)

HKAS 32
(Amendments)
HK (IFRIC) — INT 20

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a
Surface Mine?
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i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,

2011.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2013.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2015.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2012.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July,
2012.

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2014.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 43

(&3]) BE®
BEQHERNF 2% BEEHIE - REE@
(&3]) BE!
E‘i’éf@%fﬁﬂ'l?%ﬂ% {E 8 1& A
e
LIEET)
E‘i’éf@%fﬁﬂ'lsfﬂ%ﬁ BUMBHRR
e
LIEET)
BERECHENF8R RBERARREE
(Z2——F ARHIRE?
LIEET)
BEGHENENY: BHeREERER
(&3]) BE®
BE (BRHMBRE BARKBSLEERR
ZEZE89) Y R BRBK AR
—2BE0%
l R=ZT——F+t B B UERBEZ
F [ HAR £ RK -

2 R-E—=F—F—BHABREDN
FREHIR AR

3 R-ZZE—RAF—A—BIABHAD
FEHRER-

@ RZE——F—A—BFIAEHRD
F [ HAR AR -

g R-ZE——FtA—HARBEBAN
FREHIR AR

g R-ZT—MF—A—BRABHAD
FEHRER-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %14 BA 75 5 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
(as revised in November 2010) add requirements for
financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” are subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change
relates to financial liabilities that are designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. Specifically, under
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
presentation of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss. Currently, under HKAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as at fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1st January, 2015, with earlier application
permitted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —T——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted
in the Group's consolidated financial statements for
financial year ending 31st December, 2015 and that
the application of the new Standard will not have a
significant impact on amounts reported in respect of
the Groups' financial assets and financial liabilities
based on an analysis of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities as at 31st December, 2011.

New and revised Standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures was issued, including HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (Revised 2011) and HKAS 28
(Revised 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described
below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that deal with
consolidated financial statements and SIC-Int 12
Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10
includes a new definition of control that contains three
elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal
with complex scenarios.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmARNE

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and SIC-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. HKFRS 11 deals with how
a joint arrangement of which two or more parties have
joint control should be classified. Under HKFRS 11,
joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or
joint ventures, depending on the rights and obligations
of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under
HKAS 31, there are three types of joint arrangements:
jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and
jointly controlled operations.

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required
to be accounted for using the equity method of
accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities under
HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity method
of accounting or proportionate accounting.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than
those in the current standards. These five standards
are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is permitted
provided that all of these five standards are applied
early at the same time.

The directors anticipate that these five standards will
be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1 January
2013. The directors are in the process of performing
an analysis of the impact of the application of these
Standards and hence have not yet quantified the extent
of the impact.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the results and financial
position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B HRF M T

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —T——F+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 43

FEEHHR

AN EET R AE S 2 B
RETRITARAFEFTEN
iR e SR T AR LB AR R AR

A BT GRS TR B B AT AT 2
& 1B 15 ) B B T 1R 4 B AR o
B R A BT T R R B K P B
% bR R A A IR E B
BARE -

TEEHERRHEIBWT -

meaRE

REMBRRIEARARIAR
A (KB AR FiEs BN M
BHRER - BARNFEEENEE —
MERNMEREERRK {EMmA

i X

A S 765 o R 25 B - (B AU 42

FRMBBRLENHE AR E
B HERUBEHEXNEEER
HEBHLE (ER) REEE2mEK
AR P IR

B & 2K & B AR NE B
BERELAZE AEHBAANE
AT EARSBE MK B AR
ERT—Ee

ESBEARRRRRS &k WA
A ERGFaREREHE-

PP B R B 2 SR 4% AU o B AN SR 8]
REFRHNESEDFHZ7 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %14 BA 75 5 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HZ=—Z——F+=-_F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts
at the date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
(including any components of other comprehensive
income attributable to them), and (iii) recognises
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognise as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.
When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued
amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain
or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSs).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair
value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognized and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively.

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5
Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operation are measured in accordance with that
Standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B HRF M T

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —T——F+-_A=+—HILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %14 BA 75 5 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’'s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liguidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or another measurement basis required by another
Standard.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses and is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates may be
impaired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. A cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and
then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating
unit, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods sold in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales taxes and sales
returns.

Revenue from sales of medical products are recognised
when the medical products are delivered and title has
passed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %14 BA 75 5 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HZ=—Z——F+=-_F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the year in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase
of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of
the following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use
or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Research and development expenditure
(continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria listed above. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial
recognition, internally-generated intangible asset is
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same
basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contributions schemes including
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and state-managed
retirement benefits schemes are charged as expenses
when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Government grants

Government grants are transfers of monetary assets or
non-monetary assets from the government to the Group
at no consideration.

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
associated with the grant. If a government grant is
in the form of a transfer of a monetary asset, it is
measured at the amount that is received or receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %14 BA 75 5 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Government grants (continued)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Government grants
related to depreciable assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss over the useful
lives of the related assets. Other government grants are
recognised as revenue over the periods necessary to
match them with the costs for which they are intended
to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government
grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %14 BA 75 5 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account their estimated residual value, using
the straight-line method.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Leasehold land and buildings under
development for future owner-occupied
purpose

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course
of development for production or for administrative
purposes, the leasehold land component is classified as
a prepaid lease payment and amortised over a straight-
line basis over the lease term. During the construction
period, the amortisation charge provided for the
leasehold land is included as part of costs of buildings
under construction. Buildings under construction are
carried at cost, less any identified impairment losses.
Depreciation of buildings commences when they are
available for use (i.e. when they are in the location and
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %14 BA 75 5 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment properties measured using the
cost model

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is charged so as to
write off the cost of investment properties over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of
their estimated residual values using the straight-line
method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
property (i.e., property, plant and equipment) is made
when and only when there is a change in use evidenced
by commencement of owner-occupation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the
period when the asset is derecognised.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the
establishment of a separate entity in which venturers
have joint control over the economic activity of the
entity are referred to as the jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in the jointly
controlled entities are initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the jointly controlled entities, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses
of the jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its
interest in that jointly controlled entity (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group's net investment in the jointly controlled
entity), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. An additional share of losses is provided
for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled
entity.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 43

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& BAFS Rz M T

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. FEFBE (5

BERE

BYWERERFHERNELE
BE T3 DARK AN R 51 88 55 I AE 7] R T
HERBEE - BRERBFHNE
FMEEMEHEREREERGE
Rl BB -

| TR A T T A A M2 R
518 T LA 5 2 3R % 9 X 0R
AEBBCEHEBHE TRZ
Y& B AR LW 40 B A B s
R -

HFEEFERE

ARZEHERERESE LM
VYHBUER MeEEEXER

B EES) E AR A PR A o

ARZEHEENXANEERAR
NAEDZSHZHARAMBR
ReBREBEREEE NARENER
MBI FTRERE MR &R A
BREANERR BERELDFHRIA
HARNEEEGEARZEFERESR
N E 2 W AORE ] 2 8RR E
BE-EAREEENARIZEHER
HEIEESEN BB ERNZ LR
HERNES (BREEE LBRA
SERARZEHERNIREFR—
o M REERS) AEE/R
IFEREEANE - PEHE K&
BERBIEEEEERE LR
ERAEEEL LRI EETREK
R % L RHE 5 B 88 3B T 2R
&



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 BA 75 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z-F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Jointly controlled entities (continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the jointly
controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisition
is recognised as goodwill. Goodwill is included within
the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested
for impairment separately. Instead, the entire carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment as
a single asset. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment in the
jointly controlled entities. Any reversal of impairment
loss is recognised to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Upon disposal of a jointly controlled entity that results
in the Group losing joint control over that jointly
controlled entity, any retained investment is measured
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset
in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between
the previous carrying amount of the jointly controlled
entity attributable to the retained interest and its fair
value is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the jointly controlled entity. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that jointly controlled entity on the same basis as
would be required if that jointly controlled entity had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that jointly controlled
entity would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when it loses joint
control over that jointly controlled entity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Jointly controlled entities (continued)

When a group entity transacts with the jointly
controlled entity of the Group, unrealised profits or
losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the jointly controlled entity.

Investments in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint controlled entity. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associates. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z-F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in Associates (continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the
carrying amount of the investment and is not tested
for impairment separately. Instead, the entire carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment as
a single asset. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment in the
associate. Any reversal of impairment loss is recognised
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Group
losing significant influence over that associate, any
retained investment is measured at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance
with HKAS 39. The difference between the previous
carrying amount of the associate attributable to the
retained interest and its fair value is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it
loses significant influence over that associate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in Associates (continued)

Where a group entity transacts with the associate of the
Group, unrealised profits or losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the associate.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less all estimated costs to
completion and costs to be incurred in marketing,
selling and distribution.

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwiill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. In addition, intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that
they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but such that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 BA 75 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
as a finance or an operating lease separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land and building (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant
and equipment, or investment property, as appropriate.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the year in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 BA 75 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the
translation reserve).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and loans and
receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

e  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 BA 75 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

e the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the
grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial asset at FVTPL includes the Group’s investment
in convertible notes which have been designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on
the financial assets and is included in the other income,
gains and losses line item in the consolidated statement
of income statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, bank balances and pledged
bank deposits) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets other than financial assets at FVTPL are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

For loans and receivable, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty;

e default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 BA 75 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade and other receivables, bill receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group's past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period and observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and bills receivables and
other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and bills
receivable are considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit
or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 BA 75 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z-F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, and
trade and other payables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognises an associated liability. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, in its entirely, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumption concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, is discussed as below:

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. The discount rate represents
rate that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the future cash flow estimates have not been
adjusted. As at 31st December, 2011, the carrying
amount of goodwill is RMB202,900,000 (2010:
RMB202,900,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 22.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 BA 75 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HZ=—Z——F+=_F=+—HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note
28, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on an annual basis. As part of this review,
the directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associates with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends and issue of new shares as well
as the issue of new debt or the repayment of existing
debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

5. EXxEBEER
AEENERERHRRAEER
EEEETARESREE B

BREEELENBRERABRK
RERFANE R RAEEHREERER
S EIAEFERFFTE -

AEBNERNERBREBEFH
Heh @ ¥ 28k B A fE 30 2
T RBRESFEDARAR Tﬁﬁfﬁ/\

fefhtEas (BREBEITHRA  MEK
RERAFH) -

ARRESHFUENEBETR
Ao tERRARIN R EX8%E
F§$W$&Amﬁ§$ﬁWMH

ﬁfi%k AEEREBIR
ﬁ% LATH R BB ITHE
i%ﬁﬁﬁﬁL$wE%ﬁ§$%
e

&eMIA
eMIAHA
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
—E——5F —ZT—ZF
ARBTRT ARETTT

Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables (including

cash and cash equivalents)

Financial liabilities TRIBE
Amortised cost

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IR =5 EE

B N e Wk TR
(BRAEMAEE

BY) 3,282,037 1,722,394

1,064,507 909,596

A TERBBRBERA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& BAFS Rz M T

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and bills receivables, other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances, trade and bills payable, other
payables and borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

PRC subsidiaries of the Company with functional
currency of RMB have certain foreign currency
sales, purchases, bank balances and cash and bank
borrowings denominated in US Dollar (USD), Hong
Kong Dollar (HKD), and Singapore Dollar (SGD), which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at

&EMIR (&)

MERREEARARBE

AEENTEeRTABHERKE
TR N R SR A - Hoh FE M HROR -
EEMBITER  RITEH BHE
SRBRENRE RN KA
EER - ZEFERTAFERSH
ARBE-EZEFERMTAEGHENE
REREHERR (%R KR
R) EERRERSES AR -
N 3CH S an ] R R R S LR A IR
R-BEEEEMEEZSTRER A
R % B B SO BREUGE & AV 15 ) ©

i 4 I B
B

ARAZNEEERARE ZFTE
B ARBEANAEXIT (XT) BT
(B7T) RFTIETT (F T ) sHE
ZETINEHE R RITERINA
EBEERRTEE BmMEALE
7S M LR ©

RBEPR REBAINESEZ
ERKEEREBEGE 2 EEEN

the end of the reporting period are as follows. T
Liabilities Assets
fiff BE
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
—2—-% —Z-%F 2% —Z-%F
AERTR ARBTT AE®TT ARETT
Currency of HKD BT - = 289,71 59,776
Currency of SGD g - = 788,030 -
Currency of USD e 84,012 110,378 981 34,112
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 BA 75 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z-F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency risk of
HKD, SGD and USD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% increase and decrease in the RMB against the
relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the period end for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit for the year where the
RMB strengthens 5% against the relevant currency.
For a 5% weakening of the RMB against the relevant
currency, there would be an opposite impact on the
profit for the year.

&EMIR (&)

MERBRERERREE (B)

mEmEE (&)
EEmE (&)

AREBTRAXBIT FIMKIT R
XLz E%EAR -

TREFVAEBRH AR K BB
e ZER FF R NS5 % 2 BURRSE o
5% AR EEER A BEANZPRE I
ERBRMEAZHERE T AEE
BHINESIEA]REEE) 2 FT1H -
RXEDNTEBIERLE N Z AINET
BEzEBEE  TRERIE%ZI
EEFHABRREZBRE - A TIER
FnE AR S EEINEFES %R
ZARFERANZFE o WARE R
R INE BT BES5% @ Rl & B ARFEEF
FESHEERTE-

2011 2010
RMB'000 RMB’000
—E——F _—_ZT-ZF
ARBFRE AR%TE
Increase (decrease) in RNEE R AR MM O L)
pre-tax profit for the year

— If RMB weakness against — M AR L INEEZE
foreign currency 49,736 (824)

— If RMB strengthens against —MARB R INEFE
foreign currency (49,736) 824
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& BAFS Rz M T

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group was exposed to interest rate in relation
to the bank balances as well as variable-rate
bank borrowings (see note 28 for details of bank
borrowings). The Group interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of lending rate
promulgated by the People’s Bank of China.

The Group manages its interest rate exposure based on
the interest rate level and outlook as well as potential
impact on the Group’s financial position arising from
volatility of the interest rate.

The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below is prepared assuming the
bank balances as well as bank borrowings outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole year. A 27 basis point increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and it represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates on variable rate bank borrowings
had been 27 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's post-
tax profit for the year ended 31st December, 2011
would increase/decrease by RMB8,114,000 (2010:
RMB1,608,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its bank balances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 BA 75 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z-F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’'s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to discharge their
obligations as at 31st December, 2011 in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debtors. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debtor at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because most
of the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

&EMIR (&)

MERBRERERREE (B)

15 & W B

WMEFITR T ——
=+t —BRERTEENAE A
AEERSHECEATREEMEA
AXHNBEAREERRABENERE M
BARARINENZFEERA
o

AREEREEERR AEBEEE
ECZk—#MAABEEEERFEER
B EEEMNREMEEEG - AR
R PR B BRAE F5 it U [ 780 B (S 7R - Ut
S REBEBEHR AEEESFHEE
TR & Bl & & & AT Ye [ & B8 - DA BEAR
A1 R U (O] & B8 AT R R S0 R E
BiE-BUME  AAREEFRARN
SENEERRD KEREE-

RBELNEERRBAR RE
RAZHEHF T RESBEREER
RERBIERSEEFRMRT

AEBITESERETNEERR
BRERBRIIABMEZEHF -

iod /o]

EEERDESRAREK NEBEE
ENEREEER S RIKFENE
eRREEEBY URAKEELE
RHEECHYRERSRENBAE
KHp g 1 EERRITHERE
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SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IURESEBEER S FERKMHER A A



112
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. @RI R (&)
Financial risk management objectives and MERBRERERERBEK (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) nBEEmE (F)
The following table details the Group's remaining TR ARIE 5 7E 8 32 HABR 7F 4B & 51 X
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial SEETESRABENRIRELE
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The HA - ZRNDBEBEERAEEHER
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted TRHEENXFRHNERABERN
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest AUAEBFERERNEMBRR -ZRxBHE
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The MEERAEBEERE-ENERE
table includes both interest and principal cash flows. LUSBI AR BEMATRE T REFER
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the HREDABMERARNF XSG -
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at
the end of the reporting period.
Liquidity and interest risk tables B E 2 R EE %
Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective Less than Over undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 year 1-2 year 2:5 years 5 years cash flows 31.12.2011
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R_E—-%
] AURRE tZAZt-B
ERfl% DPME 1525 255§ Bi85F WENE WEEE
% ABRTR ABRTR ABRTR ARRTRT ARRTT AB®TR
201 I3--%
Non-derivative it eMAR
financial liabilities
Trade payables EE55E - 407,935 - - - 407,935 407,935
Bills payable EREE - 348,070 - - - 348,070 348,070
Other payables A ITE - 203,045 - - - 203,045 203,045
Other payables relating to the ARE-BNEAABMER
acquisition of additional interest EBHEMERTE
in a subsidiary 531 11,000 11,000 - - 22,000 21,445
Bank borrowings R 3.38 23,132 2,718 43,426 - 89,336 84,012
993,182 33,778 13,426 - 1070386 1,064,507
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 BA 75 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z-F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. @I R (&)
Financial risk management objectives and MERBRERERERBEK (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) nBEEmE (F)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) MEER RV ERE X (&)
Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective Less than Over undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 year 1-2 year 2-5 years 5 years cash flows 31.12.2010
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB000
HZ5-ZF
nETH AEEEE TZA=t-A
ER= SR 1225 285% B TEEE MERE
% ARETT ARETT Nt S NG So AE#BFT AT
2010 Z3-%%
Non-derivative i eMAR
financial liabilities
Trade payables ENE 558 - 263,085 = = = 263,085 263,085
Bills payable EREE - 328,130 - - - 328130 328,130
Other payables HtoERFE - 162,877 - - - 162,877 162,877
Other payables relating to the HAE-HHEANE MR
acquisition of additional interest BBNEBENTE
in a subsidiary 5.31 22,000 11,000 11,000 - 44,000 40,783
Bank borrowings RiThea 256 24,336 24,054 68,770 - 117,160 110379
Bank borrowings - variable rate RITER-FBHE 312-6.88 438 - - - 434 430
804,770 35,054 79,770 - 919,59 909,596

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

fid 3 B | R 52 Bh B ¥ 5 B R TE Y
MERMEEFARE EXAEMIFITE
TREBENFSNERTEHRERGE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& BAFS Rz M T

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
is determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis
using prices or rates.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the research and
development, production and sale of single-use medical
device products, orthopaedic products and blood
purification products and operates in the PRC.

For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised into three operating divisions — single
use medical products, orthopaedic products, blood
purification products. These divisions are the basis of
the internal reports about components of the Group
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker (Managing Director) in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.

Principal activities of the Group’s operating segments
are as follows:

Single use medical -
products

production and sale of single
use consumables such as
infusion sets, syringes,
blood transfusion sets and
blood bags.

production and sale of
orthopaedic products.

Orthopaedic -
products

production and sale of blood
purification products and
related medical equipment.

Blood purification -
products
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e WIS RaR T &

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z-F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results

7.

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

results by operating segment:

SWBEH ()

2011 —2——%
Single use Blood
medical Orthopaedic purification
products products products Eliminations Total
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
—REER
ERER BHER ORBLES i &t
ARRTRE AE®TRT AR®TR AR%TR AEREBTR
Revenue Yozt
External sales SR 8 2,643,990 243,423 293,164 - 3,180,577
Inter-segment sales ANBHHBEE 10,025 - - (10,025) -
Total Bt 2,654,015 243,423 293,164 (10,025) 3,180,577
Segment profit 78 7l 706,278 84,585 42,536 - 833,399
Unallocated expenses APEHAX (300)
Unallocated other income, ROEEMBA -
gain and losses ez kB 1R 48,870
Share of profit of jointly G EREHIEEEF
controlled entities 99,842
Share of profit of associates ANl 51,419
Gain on disposal of a jointly ~ HE—ELREHELH
controlled entity Wzs 2,568,534
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries & Ki/B 2 7] K &5 18 (9,258)
Profit before tax BR 7% A& Al

Inter-segments sales are charged at prevailing market

rates.

3,592,506

NEDBHEDRRITHENE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. FWEH (8)
Segment revenues and results (continued) SHBERREE (E)
2010 —E-ETF
Single use Blood
medical  Orthopaedic purification
products products products Eliminations Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
— A
BEEM FRER WRFCLER MO B
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Revenue gk
External sales INERSHE 2,077,602 175,233 209,722 - 2,462,557
Inter-segment sales AL HiEE 13,443 - 6,308 (19,751) =
Total =) 2,091,045 175,233 216,030 (19,751) 2,462,557
Segment profit 2 E A 520,807 54,237 24,092 - 599,136
Unallocated expenses RAEFAX (594)
Unallocated other income, AABEMMA -
gain and losses WERkER 92,145
Share of profit of jointly EEAREHE B SR
controlled entities 153,057
Share of profit of an associate  fEf5 — R & 2 &G F 44,140
Profit before tax BR 758 31 8

Inter-segments sales are charged at prevailing market

rates.

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment profit represents the
profit earned by each segment without allocation of
unallocated other income, gains and losses, unallocated
expenses, share of profit of jointly controlled entities,
share of profit of associates and gain/loss on disposal
of subsidiaries/a jointly controlled entity. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 BA 75 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z-F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. #WEH ()
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEERAR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and AEEEREREDHBINEEERE
liabilities by operating segment: (ERUNNE
2011 —E——4
Single use Blood
medical  Orthopaedic  purification
products products products  Consolidated
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
—REER
BRER FHER DRBLER &8

ARRTR ARRTR AERTR AE®TR

Assets BE
Segment assets PEEE 3,831,787 477,226 681,902 4,990,915
Interest in associates REEA AR 2,374,267
Interest in jointly controlled entities REREGEBER 28,858
Investment properties REME 3,460
Deferred tax assets BERBEAE 15,757
Pledged bank deposits BRRIER 107,472
Bank balances and cash BOEBRAS 1,851,238
Consolidated assets GREE 9,371,967
Liabilities AE
Segment liabilities AHEE 977,822 54,118 23,041 1,054,981
Bank borrowings RORE 84,012
Other payable relating to the acquisition ~ ELUREE —FIM B2 RSN ER
of additional interest in a subsidiary BEHEMERTR
(note 29) (H3E29) 21,445
Consolidated liabilities GRRBE 1,160,438
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

7. #BEH (&)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued) SHEERAR (&)
2010 —E—F4F
Single use Blood
medical Orthopaedic purification
products products products Consolidated
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
— A
BEER BRER NRFLER o)
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETTL
Assets BE
Segment assets PEE 2,545,178 418,926 333,955 3,298,059
Interest in an associate RN—EBE DA ER 130,127
Interest in jointly controlled entities REREG T BER 431,436
Investment properties RENME 14,905
Deferred tax assets REHEEE 12,505
Pledged bank deposits BRFIER 134,109
Bank halances and cash ROEHLTR S 628,223
Consolidated assets GAREE 4,649,364
Liabilities BE
Segment liabilities AHEE 778,262 32,339 49,386 859,987
Bank borrowings ROEE 114,721
Other payable relating to the acquisition ~ ELUEE — I BN Ao ER
of additional interest in a subsidiary BB EMENTE
(note 29) (FtzE29) 40,783
Consolidated liabilities GRER

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances

and allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than investment properties, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, deferred tax
assets, interest in jointly controlled entities and
interest in associates. Assets used jointly by
operating segments are allocated on the basis
of the revenues earned by individual operating

segment; and

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than bank borrowings and other payables
relating to the acquisition of additional interest
in a subsidiary. Liabilities for which operating
segments are jointly liable are allocated in

proportion to segment assets.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z-F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. FEPEHE (&)
Other segment information Hith o EFE
2011 —E——f
Single use Blood
medical  Orthopaedic  purification
products products products Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
—RHER
BERES EHER MRASLER &t
ARRTR ARRTR AR®TTR AR®TR
Amounts included in the measure of STEAHERND BEERE
segment profit or segment assets: A
Additions to property, plant and equipment  #T2%%  BE k&R 856,268 34,775 252,563 1,143,606
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts rEREE 13,856 2,286 - 16,142
Release of prepaid lease payment BNHESARNE 5,594 193 275 6,062
Amortisation of intangible assets BN EESH - 3,114 - 3,114
Depreciation of property, nx BERZENE
plant and equipment 66,671 14,241 13,388 94,300
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, LENE  BER&E (b)) B8
plant and equipment (146) (64) 20 (190)
Research and development expenditure MRS 112,379 20,854 8,798 142,031
Government grant B B (10,049) (2,240) (130) (12,419)
Rebate of value added tax (“VAT") SER (EER]) R (39,288) - - (39,288)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. FEPEHE (&)
Other segment information (continued) HthoBWFE (&)
2010 —E—EF
Single use Blood
medical Orthopaedic purification
products products products Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—REEA
BREEM BRER NRFER =H
ARETTL AREFTL AREFT ARETT
Amounts included in the measure of STEABENR D BEERER
segment profit or segment assets: FE:
Additions to property, plant and equipment  ¥732%%  BiE Rk 295,503 6,795 37,437 339,735
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts REREE 6,600 9,223 3,838 19,661
Impairment loss on property, n% BE k& ENRERSE
plant and equipment 2,314 - - 2314
Release of prepaid lease payment BNESARAE 4,774 193 275 5,242
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERH = 3,114 - 3,114
Depreciation of property, nE BEREERTE
plant and equipment 64,163 13,087 13,113 90,363
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, LENF KR Rk (W) BB
plant and equipment 293 (79) (85) 129
Research and development expenditure HERT 84,236 9,728 6,078 100,042
Government grant TR 168 8 - - (21,197) (21,197)
Rebate of value added tax ("VAT") BER (BER])ER (35,000) - - (35,000)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 BA 75 3% b &%

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z-F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

7. #BEH (&)

Revenue from major products FEELSKE
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
—E——F _ZT-ZTF
ARBTFRE ARKTE
Sale of single use medical products HE—RMEABEEMD
— Infusion sets —H R =S 937,652 723,697
— Syringes —I 8 469,694 408,054
— Pre-filled syringes — BRI T 5 126,492 97,676
- Needles — T & 549,263 398,354
- Blood bags and sampling — IM £2 & o % £1 10 2 an
products 250,003 218,419
- PVC granules —PVCHL#} 63,896 60,179
— Other products —H M ZE m 246,990 171,223
Sale of orthopaedic products HE B R Em 243,423 175,233
Sale of blood purification products 3HE MR FLE m 293,164 209,722
3,180,577 2,462,557
Information about major customers FTEEXEENEEHE

There is no single customer contributing over 10% of
total sales of the Group for both years.

Geographical segment

The Group’s operations, assets and most of the

RRMEFEAN MEE-FPHE

BHEANEEAFEEENI0% °

& 5 8B

customers are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no
analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets,

additions to property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets is presented.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IURESEEER S

AEENREXRG BEMAED
BEPHUNHTE - Rt BAZ5D
MEERAEE FIEWE BB MR
BAREBLEEN DT -

FRmMBNERA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

=
Ny

VSRR MY =

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the
general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a
capitalisation rate of 3.39% (2010: 3.88%) per annum
to expenditure on qualifying assets.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MERF
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
—E——F —_T—IZTF
ARBTFRE ARKTE
Imputed interest expenses on H b R RIB 2 EE R B
other payable i3 1,081 2,056
Interest on bank borrowings wholly ~ ZERAF ABEEENIRTT
repayable within five years BEFE 3,357 8,666
Interest on bank borrowings wholly ~ ZBER AFEBEEENETT
repayable after five years BER L - -
Less: Amount capitalised in B ERIERERER
construction in progress (3,296) (1,064)
1,142 9,658

FRNEREZBERATIN —RE
BERELS NEAAEREERX
ZCEEERE339% (ZE—F
#:3.88% )it& -

FRRAX
2011 2010
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—B——% _T-TF

ARBTRE AR%®TR

R X ATS

PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Deferred taxation (note 30)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of certain PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1st January,
2008 onwards.

In accordance with the “Notice of the State Tax Bureau
of the Ministry of Finance Regarding Certain Preferential
Treatment Policies on Enterprise Income Tax”, New and
High Technical Enterprise was subject to income tax at a
tax rate of 15%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 BA 75 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z-F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The Company, Weihai Jierui Medical Products Company
Limited (“Jierui Subsidiary”), Shandong Weigao
Orthopaedic Device Company Limited (“Weigao Ortho")
and Weihai Weigao Blood Purification Product Company
Limited (“Weigao Blood”) were recognised as Shandong
Province New and High Technical Enterprises (LUER & =
# o {b %) for the year ended 31st December, 2011
and 2010. Therefore, they were subject to income tax at
a tax rate of 15% for both years.

Jierui Subsidiary was recognised as a “Social Welfare
Entity” and pursuant to Guo Fa 2007 No. 92 issued
by the State Council, with effect from 1st July, 2007,
Jierui Subsidiary is subject to a statutory tax rate but
an amount equivalent to the total salaries paid to staff
with physical disability is further deducted from the
taxable income of Jierui Subsidiary and the rebate of
value added tax is exempted from the PRC income tax.
Jierui Subsidiary is subject to income tax at a tax rate
of 15%. The tax charge provided for the years ended
31st December, 2011 and 2010 were made after taking
these tax incentives into account.

Weigao Ortho is a foreign-invested enterprise operating
in the PRC and is entitled to an exemption from PRC
income tax for the two years starting from its first
profit-making year, followed by 50% tax relief for the
subsequent three years. Weigao Ortho commenced its
first profit-making year in 2006. For the year ended
31st December, 2011, Weigao Ortho was subject to
income tax at a tax rate of 15% (2010: 7.5%).

Taxation for other PRC subsidiaries are calculated at a
tax rate of 25% (2010: 25%).

No provision of Hong Kong taxation has been made
for Weigao International Medical Co., Ltd, Wego
Medical Investment Company Limited and Wego
Medical Holding Company Limited as they did not have
assessable profit in Hong Kong during both years.

9.

FRSMBA (&)

KRR BERGERERERA
A (2B AR])  WRESE
BMMRERAR ([BEEE]) RE
BEESDRFCEBERAR ([
SR EERREEZE_T—F
N—E-FBE+_A=+—HIE
BLEESHEMEE WESEW
FRIR15% T R B ATEF -

BiInlMB AR ERRE Lt REA
] WAR BB 5B 8 2 B 2%
2007FERNFEXH H_TETZLF
A— B R B AR IMEKE
EMEHMB - BREERIMN TER
BElIHFcEBE R E— AR
I Fft B 2 ] A B ER B UL A AR HORL -
G E R KB 8 B Fr {3 5 A 4
Br o R In M B A B BK15% 8 X &
NEFEHR BE-_E——EK_-Z
—ZEFF+_A=+—BHLEFEZH
EHEBECREBEZSNGEEREME
4o

BEEard s —BERBELE 2 F I
EEL¥ ERBHEREENFEE
RETMFEEREHRBEMSH  ME
B—FAUZMERBAE - ZFTZ X
FERSEREEENEE -#HE
—E——F+_A=Z+—HIHF
B BHedRAKRIS% (ZE—ZF
F:75% ) REHBSAER -

H At BB A BB IR 9 H25%
(Z2—FF:25% ) REFFE-

MERBESBERERZERARA
AEERERREBRARNES
BERERARARNFEHEEL
BE REASMEARSNERL
ERRDURF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 9.

No provision of overseas taxation has been made for
Weigao Medical (Europe) Co., Ltd and Weigao Medical
Germany Gmbh as they did not have assessable profit

made during both years.

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
per the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income as follows:

pAREAN

B ERR M

.

FRSMBA (&)

5 R @ A -

BERESEE (BUN) BRA
BB EE () BRA TE’]/i
INHIBELEE RRAMENE

RAFENFIRLELS S 2 EBA R
R A E BR AT

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
—E——% —ZT—TF
AR®BTRE AREBTT
Profit before taxation B B A& A 3,592,506 887,884
Taxation at the domestic income BI5%BEAFMBHEFED
tax rate of 15% (2010: 15%) ME(ZE—FF:15%) 538,876 133,183
Tax effect of share of profit of JFE1G 3£ H? HE E 2m
jointly controlled entities M (14,976) (22,959)
Tax effect of share of profit of fE1G é‘ﬁ@:*“ A] 2 M 89 151 75
associates 2 (7,714) (6,621)
Tax effect of income not taxable MMEME BEARRBAZ
for tax purpose ms 2 (396,168) (5,312)
Additional tax benefit in research and #f &k AN 2 BN I B =
development cost (note) (PfF=E) (8,592) (6,640)
Utilisation of estimated tax losses FRABERERNMETRIE
previously not recognised B8 - (1,480)
Tax effect of deductible temporary AN SR AT H A B = RE Y
difference not recognised mBs 2 1,590 —
Tax effect of expenses not kR A=A NG B k2 - =)
deductible for tax purpose mis 2 10,727 6,602
Effect of differential tax rate TRAMEHANEBENTE
on the Group 9248 (11,842)
Others HAh (219) 601
Taxation IE 124,472 85,532

Note: Additional tax allowance was granted by the PRC tax Bt 5
authority in respect of the research and development cost of
RMB57,280,000.00 (2010: RMB44,267,000) incurred in new

products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 BA 75 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HZ=—Z——F+=_F=+—HILFE

10. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 10. Hthlgr A W R R 5 1R
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
—E——% —_T—ITF
AR®TRT ARETT
Rebate of VAT (note a) WERERK (MEa) 39,288 35,000
Government grant (note b) BT # ARG (B 5ED ) 12,419 21,197
Gain arising from increase in share of E{E—MBEARMNFEE
net assets of an associate (note 21)  EMMFTE A/ Uz (Hi5E21) - 35,419
Bank interest income |ITA B WA 6,447 5,572
Rental income (Note 35) Ha WA (H5E35) 1,946 2,485
Net exchange (loss) gain fE X (E51E) Yas #5E (15,906) 3,025
Loss from changes in fair value of BEREBRATE +)\TE =)
financial assets designated as THEEATEEZSHERE
at FVTPL (6,834)
Others HAib 4,857 1,460
42,217 104,158
Note: Fff &

As Jierui Subsidiary was recognised as a “Social Welfare Entity”,
the Tax Bureau in Weihai granted a rebate of the value added
tax paid by Jierui Subsidiary with effect from 1st May, 1999
on the basis of “payment first then rebate”. Pursuant to
Guo Fa 2007 No.92 issued by the State Council, with effect
from 1st July, 2007, lJierui Subsidiary was granted a rebate
of value added tax determined with reference to the number
of staff with physical disability. For each staff with physical
disability, six times of the minimum salary approved by the local
government in Weihai is granted to Jierui Subsidiary as rebate
of value added tax but subject to an annual maximum limit of
RMB35,000 per staff with physical disability.

During the year, a government grant of RMB12,419,000
(2010: RMB21,197,000) was awarded to the Group for specific
research and development projects completed during the year
ended on 31 December 2011 and are recognised as income
when the specific research and development expenses were
incurred.

1) Pursuant to the Notice on the Budget for Key Technology
Development Plan of Weihai High-tech District for the
Year 2011 Weigaokezi [2011] No.9 issued by the Bureau
of Science and Technology of Weihai, the Group received
specific government grant RMB4,000,000 for purpose of
incurring research and development of Bio-coat velum
oxygen system. It was recognised as income when the
specific research and development expenses were incurred.

2) During the year ended on 31 December 2011, a
government grant of RMB200,000 was awarded to the
Group by Bureau of Finance of Weihai High-tech District
for specific research and development projects and are
recognised as income when the specific research and
development expenses were incurred.

3) Other government grant recognised as other income see
note 31.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IR =5 EE

HRRIEHB AR ERERA [LERE
A BAEE RSB M2 B
AEBREEERER B— L NNE
AA—HRER RAA[EMRER
2| o RSP B 2 Bl 8820075592
RN H_TTEFELA—HE 2
T B B A B R IS E R R 5K D 2
EREETIHEETE HBRERE
Iz A% ThaEEmBNRTE 2
%f&%ﬁ%Zﬂ%%%iﬁmﬁ Al 1EA
BERERR EEEEEE T ZRHF
E EBR A ARE35,0007T

FN AEERRBE=_FT——F
+=—A=+— Htﬁrga%}ﬁa@%
ERBEEHBERBDRATHE AR
12,419,000 (Z T —ZTF: ARK
21,197,0007T ) + M0 A 45 FE AfF 88 A 2 B

EEETﬁEWL 7%”&A°

1) RBEVE T RIS EM B A B
BENE T — SRS
ErEFEZHBAE S F
[2011]95%  REE st AW R B
IR A A 28 B9 I 3 WU TE BT
f# Bh A R #54,000,0007T ° H
ﬁiﬁ%%iﬁiﬁﬁ%%%

2) RBE_ZT——Ft+t_A=1—
BIEFEE  BSSHEN BB
FE 3 IR B SREV A S B BT
BE A R #200,0007T © 3 A5 E
MERATELERERBRA -

3)  HMBREEERSEMEA
uﬁ/FﬁMTuI31 °©

A TERBBRBERA A

125



126

11. DISPOSAL OF A JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITY

Pursuant to the Notice on Strengthening the
Management of Enterprise Income Tax Collection
of Proceeds from Equity Transfers by Non-Resident
Enterprises Guoshuihan [2009] No. 698 (“Circular
698"), foreign investors, upon fulfilling certain
conditions, are required to report certain information
and documents relating to an offshore indirect
disposal of PRC equity investments to the relevant PRC
tax authorities. Based on the reporting and further
enquiries, the PRC tax authorities would consider and
determine whether it is necessary to re-characterise the
transaction as a direct disposition of the PRC company,
on which 10% PRC Withholding Tax could be levied.

In compliance with the reporting requirement under
Circular 698, the Group has submitted some relevant
information and documents to the PRC tax authorities
and they are in the progress of submitting all the
documents required by Circular 698 and liaising with
the PRC tax authorities with respect to the background
and taxation treatment of the equity transfer
transaction as of the date of the approval of these
consolidated financial statements. The directors are of
the opinion that the disposal of 50% equity interest
in Shandong JW Medical Products Co., Ltd(” JWMS")
(see note 34) on 3rd October, 2011 is not a direct
disposition of the PRC company and accordingly no
provision on 10% PRC Withholding Tax is necessary as
at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& BAFS Rz M T

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 BA 75 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HZ=—Z——F+=_F=+—HILFE

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. FAEF
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
—E——% —_T—ITF
ARBTFRE ARKTE
Profit for the year has been arrived FRE M &R (GTA)
at after charging (crediting): N3IIE B RESC:
Impairment loss on property, ME KERFZEREESE
plant and equipment - 2,314
Allowances for bad and REEREE
doubtful debts 16,142 19,661
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEEH
(included in administration (BERITHEAZH)
expenses) 3,114 3,114
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN & 1,900 1,900
Depreciation of property, ME - HWEREBITE
plant and equipment 94,300 90,363
Depreciation of investment properties 1% & ¥ ¥ & 300 592
Prepaid lease payments FEiEm &R TENHERIE
charged to profit or loss 6,062 5,242
Rental payments in respect of REMENMEMES
premises under operating leases 2,247 6,617
Research and development MrEAZExE (BFEET
expenditure (including staff A A R #47,346,0007T
costs of RMB 47,346,000 T —TF:
(2010: RMB33,818,000) AR #33,818,0005T) ) 142,031 100,042
Cost of inventories recognised as BRBRAXHNFEKAR
an expense 1,043,832 765,193
Staff costs, including directors’ and BEIXNA(BRESERES
supervisors’ remuneration )
— Retirement benefits scheme —RIREFIET B 5K
contributions (note 39) (BF3E39) 78,015 58,522
— Salaries and other allowances — %o RHMERL 319,829 261,855
Total staff costs BT AERE 397,844 320,377
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEWHE - BELXEEE
plant and equipment (Yas) 190 129
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BIfs5 R R M3
For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE
13. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND 1. EF EFRERTH
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments EEREEMS
Supervisors are the members of the supervisory EEEARNNFEESHKE -
committee of the Company.
The emoluments of directors and supervisors during the EX EEREENMOSTOT
year are analysed as follows:
2011 2010
8-k —3-%f
Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefits Salaries benefits
and other schemes and other schemes
Fee allowances contributions Total Fee allowances  contributions Total
RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FHR arEd MR RINEA
g KR HEER ait s Az SR gt
AR®TT  ARBTRE ABRBTR ARBTR ARETr ARETn ARETn  ARET:R
Executive directors UITES
Mr. Zhang Hua Wi REREE - 426 3 429 = 397 3 400
Mr. Miao Yan Guo HEARE - M 3 214 - 134 3 137
Mr. Wang Vi L - 349 3 352 - 314 2 316
Mr. Wang Zhi Fan Btk - 256 3 259 = 21 2 13
Mr. Wu Chuan Ming SEHLE - 186 3 189 - 154 3 157
- 1,428 15 1,443 = 1,210 13 1203
Non-executive directors EufES
Mr. Chen Xue Li RER%EE - - - - - - - -
Mrs. Zhou Shu Hua ARERL - - - - - - - -
Mr. Li Bing Yung SMA%E - - - - = = - =
Mr. Jean-Luc Butel Jean-Luc Butel7 & - - - - = = = =
Independent non-executive  BILFHTEE
directors
Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong (Note 2) oLl k) 18 - - 18 - - - -
Mr. Luan Jian Ping SRTEE n - - n n - - n
Mr. Shi Huan (Note 1) RIES%E (RrH1) - - - - n - - 7
Mr. Li Jia Miao FRRAE n - - n n - - n
Mr. Lo Wai Hung ERELE 97 - - 97 103 - - 103
259 - - 259 319 = - 319
Supervisors EF
Ms. Bi Hong Mei 28050t - 27 2 29 = 178 2 180
Ms. Chen Xiao Yun REENL - 175 2 171 - 121 2 123
Mr. Miao Hai Sheng HEERE - 169 2 m - 105 2 107
- 571 6 577 = 404 6 410
259 1,999 21 2,219 319 1,614 19 1952
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BRI T

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HZ=—Z——F+=_F=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments
(continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Shi Huan resigned as independent non-executive director
on 15th August, 2011.

2. Mrs. Fu Ming Zhong was appointed as independent non-
executive director on 10th October, 2011.

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2010: two) were directors of the Company

B.ES-ESRESFMHM (&)

EEREEMe (5)

GEE

1. ABRER-_Z——FN\ATHAE
EBIERTES B

2. fBEML+ER=_ZFT——F+A+AE
RERBIUIENTES-

& B #

ZF%ﬁTﬁEE%ﬁ@H}\iﬂP e
—ZEF MB)/KARAE

whose emoluments are included in the disclosure $ f)ﬁ—rﬁ’] T EEIE B X EE o
above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2010: ER=ZZAT(Z2E—ZFF:=Z4)
three) individual were as follows: ME T -

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB'000

—E——F —ET—IF

AR®TFRE ARETT

Salaries and other benefits e kHAaLEF 1,447 1,291
Their emoluments were within the following band: BERFMHEBERLT -

2011 2010

No. of No. of

employees employees

—EB——F _—T-TF

BEAE EBE A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ T 3 3

During the two years ended 31st December, 2011, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
and supervisors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IR =5 EE

BE-T——#+-A=+-AL
R AR B B
FEEREE (FAR3 MAKE
510 A0 B 0 B2 o fE A B
1 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %434 BIf& R MIsT
For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE
14. DIVIDENDS 14. IR 2
2011 2010
RMB'000 RMB'000
—Eg——%F _—TTF
AR®TFRE ARETT
Dividends recognised as FAER RIS
distribution during the year:
2011 Interim — RMB 0.029 —E——FREHRKRE
(2010: interim dividend — nil) —ERAR®0.0297T
per share (ZE—ZFF:
FHEARR B — ) 129,815 -
2010 Final — RMB0.075 —E-TFRARE
(2010: 2009 final dividend — R AR¥0.0757T
— RMBO.105) per share —E-TF:_TTIF
KENE B — B
AR ¥0.1057T) 167,864 113,010
297,679 113,010

15.

The final dividend of RMB 0.03 per share in respect
of the year ended 31st December, 2011 (2010:
RMB0.075) amounting to RMB134,291,000 (2010:
RMB167,864,000) has been proposed by the directors.
The proposal is subject to approval by the shareholders
in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the
year is based on the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB3,462,172,000 (2010: RMB799,072,000) and on
weighted average of 4,417,726,000 shares (2010:
weighted average of 4,305,124,000 shares) in issue
during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purpose of basic earnings per share has been
adjusted for the one-for-one bonus issue during the
year ended 31st December, 2011.

No diluted earnings per share is presented because no
potential ordinary shares were outstanding either in the
current or prior year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 BA 75 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z-F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. X - WERE R
Furniture,
fixtures
Construction Plant and Motor and office
in progress Buildings machinery vehicles Moulds  equipment Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
138
BERER
HRIE BEY  BRERES RE HR  WOERG @it

ARETR  ARETR  AREBTR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  AR%TR

COST 7%
At 1st January, 2010 R=Z-%F5-A—-H 260,420 507,229 546,118 35,635 11,404 67,406 1,428,212
Additions AE 295,301 9,562 13,956 4,670 - 16,246 339,735
Transfer g3 (29,096) 93 26,284 905 - 1,814 -
Disposals HE - 3) (3,486) (3,735 - (2,078) (9,302)
At 31st December, 2010 R-Z-Z%+-A=1+-H 526,625 516,881 582,872 37,475 11,404 83,388 1,758,645
Additions AE 1,083,359 1,783 35,007 10,145 - 13,312 1,143,606
Transfer g3 (124,243) 10,106 110,231 617 - 3,289 -
Transfer from investment properties B A MFE & = 14,191 = = = = 14,191
Disposals HE - - (1,267) (533) - (2,777) (4,577)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-EHEAR - - - (912) = (405) (1317)
At 315t December, 2011 RZE-——E+ZA=1-H 1,485,741 542,961 726,843 46,792 11,404 9,307 2,910,548
DEPRECIATION ik |
At 1st January, 2010 R=Z-F4-f-AH - 64,350 129,300 14,618 11,047 42,146 261,461
Provided for the year FREE - 15,918 53,146 6,817 123 14,359 90,363
Eliminated on disposals R ER K - - (2,465) (2,583) - (1,829) (6,877)
Impairment loss recognised in RERBTZRESE (W)

profit or loss (note) 2314 - - - - - 2314
At 31st December, 2010 R-Z-Z5+-A=1+-H 2,314 80,268 179,981 18,852 11,170 54,676 347,261
Provided for the year FREE - 16,316 57,064 6,909 234 13,777 94,300
Eliminated on disposals R EREH - - (815) (428) - (2,577) (3,820)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FKBAF - - - (425) - (306) (731)
Tranfer from investment properties B E £ - 3,046 - - - = 3,046
At 31st December, 2011 R=Z——%+-A=1+-H 2,314 99,630 236,230 24,908 11,404 65,570 440,056
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31st December, 2011 R-E——%+-A=1+-H 1,483,427 443,331 490,613 21,884 - 31,237 2,470,492
At 315t December, 2010 RZIZ-ZBE+-A=1-H 524,311 436,613 402,891 18,623 234 28,712 1,411,384
Note: Impairment loss was recognised for certain construction in MeE: HBR-ZE-—ZFRNEFEAP KGR

progress because one of the assembling lines was abandoned i ME TERIEERRRE
during year 2010. g -
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment
other than construction in progress are depreciated
on a straight-line basis after taking into account their
estimated residual values and at the following rates per
annum:

Buildings 3.3% - 10%
Plant and machinery 10% — 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Moulds 50%
Furniture, fixtures and

office equipment 20%

The buildings of the Group are situated in the PRC and
erected on leasehold land under medium-term lease.

The construction in progress represented buildings,
plant and machinery and furniture, fixtures and office
equipment under construction which are situated in the
PRC.

At 31st December, 2011, the Group has pledged
buildings having a carrying value of approximately
RMB45,919,000 (2010: RMB47,722,000) to banks to
secure bank loans granted to the Group.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

16. MR -BWHE R (&)

ime% BB REmER (2
RRERIN) LB RER T AR
%Eﬁ%’ﬁ?ﬂi%ﬁ%=

EREY) 3.3% & 10%
BB Mt 2% 10%Z20%
B 20%
RA 50%
FRE - BEEEENR

MR ERME 20%

AEEONZEYHUNTE 2R
ARBIEORANEHEL Eo

FREIREURPBEMERPESE
Y BEREEREE BEEER
ENE L=

W—_E——F+_-_A=+—8"
AEBERBEEBAENARK
45,919,000t (ZZE—ZF : ARK
47,722,000 MR EYME H T iR
T HEBETAKSENRITENRW
T o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& 817

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HZ=—Z——F+=_F=+—HILFE

BRI T

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. R EME
RMB'000
AR TFIT
COST BE
At 1st January, 2010, 31st December, 2010 R-ZE—ZFF—H—H"
—E2-ZEF+=-H=+—H 18,715
Transfer (14 (14,191)
31st December, 2011 —E——F+_-_HA=+—H 4,524
DEPRECIATION nE
At 1st January, 2010 R-ZE-—ZTF—H—H 3,218
Provided for the year FNEE 592
At 31st December, 2010 R-_ZE—ZFF+_HA=+—H 3,810
Provided for the year FNEE 300
Transfer (2§ (3,046)
At 31st December, 2011 R—_ZE——F+_-_A=+—H 1,064
CARRYING VALUES RE{E
At 31st December, 2011 R—_ZE——F+_-_A=+—H 3,460
At 31st December, 2010 R—_ZE—ZEF+_-_A=+—H 14,905

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties of
approximately RMB4,351,000 as at 31st December,
2011 (2010: RMB18,000,000) has been determined
by the directors. No valuation has been performed
by independent qualified professional valuers. The
valuation performed by the directors was arrived by
reference to recent market prices for similar properties

in the same location and conditions.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a

straight-line basis at 5% per annum.

A& -

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IR E S5 EEH

NREBREWER-_T——F+=
A=1t—B®AFEHNAARKE
4,351,0007T (=& —
18,000,0007T) °

TE:ARY

ZAFERESE

E-VEBIAEEREXRMGEMBM
HETEE - EFETHEETINA
GEIRE:CE . DS SE RN SRV CYE S MEN:y)
mEFESE-

FRREMERRBEREAFR% T

ﬁvuuﬂx Eﬁﬁﬁx/—\ A)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. 8 EME (&)

The carrying value of investment properties shown
above comprise of:

ira SRR I

ALt EMENREERR

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
—E——F —_T-IFF
ARBTFRE AR%TE
Land in PRC 7O AR B A 4 i
Medium term lease R HATE 49 3,460 14,905
18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. AT HERE
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
—E——F —T-IFTF
ARBTFRE AR¥TE
The Group's prepaid lease AEEMNBENEEREBRRE:
payments comprise:
Leasehold land in PRC R EREE T i
Medium-term lease R HATE 49 386,923 232,195
Analysed for reporting purposes as: B EIRE DT A
Current portion (included in BHAE D (BREREWE S
trade and other receivables) AR K 2 EL b 8 W SR I ) 8,424 5,242
Non-current portion 3FED,HH*B” 378,499 226,953
386,923 232,195

The leasehold land in PRC are held under medium-term
lease of 44-50 years. B BB -
At 31st December, 2011, the Group has pledged
prepaid lease payments having a carrying value of
approximately RMB33,512,000 (2010: RMB34,299,000)
to banks to secure bank loans granted to the Group.

R AKERTT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 BA 75 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z-F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B EE
Registration
rights
RMB'000
B
ARBF T
COST 5% 3
At 1st January, 2010, 31st December, RZE—ZFTF—-—H—8"
2010 and 31st December, 2011 —E-EF+_A=+—HK
—E——F+=ZA=+—8 31,144
AMORTISATION #
At 1st January, 2010 R-ZE—EF—H—H 7,181
Charge for the year FARX 3,114
At 31st December, 2010 R_ZE—ZTF+_HA=+—H 10,295
Charge for the year FARX 3,114
At 31st December, 2011 RZE——F+=ZH=1+—~H 13,409
CARRYING VALUES iR B
At 31st December, 2011 R_TE——F+_A=+—H 17,735
At 31st December, 2010 R-ZF—FF+-A=1+—H 20,849
The registration rights were acquired on acquisition of AU B BT B8 1 R B[R] 98 32 58 = 5 EX
subsidiaries from independent third parties. They are [FECE - SR EMOFHMRE
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of 10 RROE T DABESH -
years.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —T——F+-_A=+—HILFE

20. INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 20 REFIEHEEMNER
ENTITIES
2011 2010
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E——F —ZT—FF

ARBTRE AR%TR

Cost of unlisted investment, at cost ~ JE E IR EKA (IR AT E 37,990 50,990
Share of post-acquisition profit and &G U B8 1% 5% F| &
other comprehensive income H A 2 mE A (9,132) 380,446
28,858 431,436
Details of the Group’s jointly controlled entities as at RZE——FRZF—ZFF+H
31st December, 2011 and 2010 are as follows: =+—HB FXEEWERZEHER
BT
Place of Proportion of
Form of incorporation nominal value of
business or registration/ registered capital
Name structure operation held by the Group Principal activities
2011 2010
REM AL AL FREBEHNHES
&% REREEL B BENE EMEFEELS FERH
—Z——§ —Z-Zf
Weigao Nikkiso (Weihai) Incorporated PRC 51% 51% Manufacture, sale and
Dialysis Equipment Co., after-sale service of
Ltd. (“Weigao Nikkiso") Nikkiso technology-
(Note 1) based medical products
Bl B E (BUB) EMKS Rz RlE g HERERRE
BRAR ([REBEHE]) DASL: 23530310
(KtzEr) EEHm
JWMS (Note 2) Incorporated PRC - 50% Production and sales of
drug eluting stents
B EE (M) Rz alE HERHERRHEMD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmARNE

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HZ=—Z——F+=-_F=+—HILFE

20. INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Pursuant to the terms in the Weigao Nikkiso Agreement,
the registered capital of USD5,610,000 (equivalent to
RMB37,990,000) was contributed by Weihai Weigao
Blood Purification Products Co., Ltd (“Weigao Blood")
and USD5,390,000 (equivalent to RMB36,500,000) was
contributed by Nikkiso Co., Ltd ( B A B # &k &)
(“Nikkiso”). Under the Memorandum and Article Weigao
Nikkiso, Weigao Blood is entitled to 50% voting right and is
entitled to share 51% of the result of Weigao Nikkiso since
its incorporation. As Weigao Blood is entitled to 50% voting
right, thus investment in Weigao Nikkiso is classified as
investment in jointly controlled entity.

On 3rd October, 2011, the Group disposed of its 50% equity
interest in JWMS to Biosensoss International Group Ltd
(“Biosensoss”). Details are set out in notes 21 and 34.

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's interests in the jointly controlled entities which
is accounted for using equity method is set out below:

20. RERZEHEROER (8

MizE1 . BIEBEE = B %5 %= %K
5,610,000 C (HERAREK
37,990,000t ) By = & 2N /5 B8
BelRF ERERAR ([EE
mi& 1) H%& + 5,390,000 7T ({5
M A R #%36,500,0007T ) By £ flF &
AEAAB#ERX S (A%
£ |)HE - RERS A ®ERNBLE
ERREEAG A S R E
BEE BHEE SO%MIRERE T E
BOMME R AME g MK ERE
EHI51% o AR B = MR EB50%
IR ERE R E A RENIRE
DEABRERZEHIFEAKRE -
M2 : RZTE——F+A=H0 AKEM
FongmE AR ([AK])HEH
RE R B EIS0%MAE - B H R
M5E21 %34

BRASBERAREHERNER
(LM RT AR ) M B 15 B R 2 &
BIEAR -

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB'000

—E2——F —T-FTF

AR®TFRE ARETT

Current assets MEBEE 41,240 364,409
Non-current assets EREBEE 17,949 89,300
Current liabilities nBaE 2,604 22,273
Non-current liabilities ERBAE - =
Income recognised in profit or loss REm R EREOBA 490,295 307,196
Expenses recognised in profit or loss MREFKRERN I H 290,370 154,139
SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED LB EEEEERE D FRGAKRN EE Q&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —T——F+-_A=+—HILFE

ira Ml

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. RBHEAFHER
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
—E——% _—TITF
ARBTFRE ARKTET
Cost of listed investment in an RERE N E 2 3E ETIRE AR
associate (Note 1) (KFaE1) 2,276,200 -
Gain arising on increase in share of EohiE R rlfEEFE
net assets of an associate (Note 2) a0 E A R e (i EE2) - 35,419
Realised gain arising from PXIZEEE N AEER IR
establishing of an associate Wz 72,314 36,895
Share of post-acquisition profit and D EUREEEEFI R Eh 2w
other comprehensive income, net WA (H1kr 2 WA 2
of dividends received 49,454 68,920
Unrealised profit on sales to HE THERR 2 REIR
an associate i A (23,701) (11,107)
2,374,267 130,127
Fair value of listed investment IR EZRFE 2,572,696 -

Included in the cost of investment as at 31st December,
2011 is intangible assets amounted to approximately
of RMB 586,498,000, goodwill of approximately RMB
200,186,000 arising on acquisition of Biosensors.
Intangible assets are amortised over 10 years.

Notes:

1) On 3rd October, 2011, the company disposed its 50% equity
interests in JWMS to Biosensors, details are set out in note
34. The consideration was satisfied by issue of 260,000,000
shares by Biosensors at fair value of approximately RMB
1,478,828,000 and issue of convertible notes by Biosensors
convertible to 110,000,000 shares of Biosensors with fair value
of RMB804,206,000, and cash amounted to RMB 787,920,000.

Upon conversion of convertible notes to shares of Biosensors
on 31st December, 2011, the Group hold 21.6% equity interest
in Biosensors and recognised fair value loss on convertible
notes from 3rd October, 2011 to 31st December, 2011 of
approximately RMB6,834,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmARNE

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

21. RBELTMHER (8)

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

2)

On 18th December, 2008, the Company and Medtronic
International Limited (“Medtronic International”) entered into
an agreement in respect of establishing a joint venture (the
“Distribution JV") in the PRC with a total registered capital
of RMB147,580,000 to undertake the sale and distribution
of orthopaedic medical device products in the PRC (the
“Distribution JV Agreement”).

The Distribution JV takes the form of a Sino-foreign co-
operative joint venture limited liability company.

Pursuant to the terms in the Distribution JV Agreement, the
registered capital of RMB147,580,000 were contributed by
Medtronic International while the Company is entitled to
49% voting right and is entitled to share 49% of the result of
Distribution JV since its incorporation.

The Company is entitled to share the remaining net assets
of the Distribution JV in the following percentage, when
the Distribution JV is dissolved under the agreement of the
Company and Medtronic International:

0 - 1 year since incorporation 10%
1 — 2 year since incorporation 25%
More than 2 years since incorporation 49%

Details of the Group’s associate as at 31st December, 2011 and 2010
are as follows:

GEE

2)

(%)

R=ZZFEENF+=_A+N\BH &R
& B2 Medtronic International Limited
([ Medtronic International | ) Bt
RuaErE ([DEEERE])FIL
W ([DEEEHZE]) DHEHEER
X¥BraFfMEARAEAR147,580,000
T MR REREHE R HE R B
BREEM-

DHABRRUPIIGERERRE
ERARH AT -

BESHEEMZOER FMER
A R #147,580,0007T & B Medtronic
International i & ' A2 &) Al #E A o
HABLEIOUNNEREZR THED
HOHEEEREEEMKZEESRLN
49% o

o 8H A &1 ¥ A A QR EMedtronic
International iR ¥ 1 & 45 2B 8 -
AREIEERATED LD EDHEE L

TENBTEESFE:

B A ROE15E 10%
B 12245 25%
B AEM A SZAE2F A 49%

RZBE——FR_T—ZF+-_A=+—
B AEBOEBLQARFBEOT:

Place of
Form of incorporation Attributable equity interest
business or registration/ directly
Name structure operation held by the Company Principal activities
2011 2010
B RSB EAFEEREN
1 EEREER B EhE i 4148 TERY
—8——-% —T-TF
Medtronic Weigao Incorporated PRC 49% 49% Sale and distribution of
Orthopaedic Device orthopaedic medical
Company Limited device products
FHNRBEMSHERAR AT HE HERDHBBERME
Em
Biosensors International Incorporated Bermuda 21.6% = Sale and distribution of
Group Ltd. (Listed on heart medical
Singapore device products
Exchange Ltd)
HEEREEER AR A L BEE (R0 HERDHEOHBRRE
RGAARRR Em
ki)

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IURESEBEER S FERKMHER A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —T——F+-_A=+—HILFE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the

Group’s associates is set out below:

= A\
Aref

IR el IR

21. R—HBELATMHER (8

SEBZ2QRNMBEERB AN

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
—2——F _—T-IFTF
ARBFRE AR%TE
Total assets mEE 11,348,027 378,959
Total liabilities waE (1,516,735) (95,114)
Net assets BEFE 9,831,292 283,845
Group's share of net assets of AEEEEBERRNEE
associates B 2,197,782 130,127
Revenue WA 1,191,350 547,072
Profit for the year NE s A 171,898 90,082
Share of profit of associates FE(R B E 63,537 44,140
Amortisation of Intangible Assets | A EEH (12,118) -
Share of profit attributable to Group 7~ % B F& 16 % 51,419 44,140
Share of other comprehensive income & {f £ 4th & @ WA (13,722) =
Group's share of profit and other REEREBE
comprehensive income of a1 K At 2 T A
associates for the year 37,697 44,140
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

22. GOODWILL 22. 8
RMB'000
ARETFIT
CARRYING AMOUNTS IR E
At 1st January, 2010, 31st December, 2010 R-ZE—ZFF—H—H "
and 31st December, 2011 —E-ZF+_A=+—HK
—E——%F+=-_A=+—H 202,900

Impairment testing on goodwiill

As explained in note 7, the Group uses operating
divisions as the basis for reporting segment information.
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
has been allocated to the following groups of cash
generating units (“CGUs"). The carrying amounts of
goodwill as at 31st December, 2011 and 2010 and as
follows:

AR ENR

AR T PR R B AT 5
BIERHEBENHERNEE-R
ETRENR BEESREIAT
ReEdsBu([ReEEL£EM])
Hpl - N—_ZE——FR_T—ZFF
TZA=t+—H BEZEEER
T

Goodwill
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000

[

—E——5F —ZT—ZF
AR®TRT ARETT
Single use medical products —RMEEREEEM 28,934 28,934
Orthopaedic products &FEEm 173,966 173,966
202,900 202,900

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or
more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired.

The management considers that groups of CGUs are
represented by different groups of subsidiaries for the
purpose of goodwill impairment testing.

AEESFRABMERE HMHE
BB rEEAEERE MEE
582 OB R (E o

BEAEHEAANS ERERR
B 4 7 £ B (1 48 B 35 T R o B
EEEVIE
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22. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing on goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the groups of CGUs of
single use medical products have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The recoverable
amount is based on the financial budget approved
by management for the next year and extrapolates
cash flows for the following four years based on an
estimated constant growth rate of 10% (2010: 10%).
This rate does not exceed the long-term growth rate
for the relevant markets. The rate used to discount
the forecast cash flows is 15%. (2010: 15%). A key
assumption for the value in use calculations is the
budgeted growth rate, which is determined based on
past performance and management’s expectations for
the market development.

The recoverable amounts of the groups of CGUs
of orthopaedic products have been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The recoverable
amount is based on the financial budget approved
by management for the next year and extrapolates
cash flows for the following four years based on an
estimated constant growth rate of 20% (2010: 20%).
This rate does not exceed the long-term growth rate
for the relevant markets. The rate used to discount
the forecast cash flows is 15% (2010: 15%). A key
assumption for the value in use calculations is the
budgeted growth rate, which is determined based on
past performance and management’s expectations for
the market development.

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of the assumption would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of the above CGUs to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the above
CGUs, thus there is no impairment on goodwill.
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22. B8 (&)

mEERENR (E)

— Kb FREEERZIREELSE
4Rz AU el & 58 iR AEE
SEMEBET A MBS BAEERE
HEZ TEMBRFERE SER
WiE10% (ZFE—FF : 10% ) B1h
B ERNREREEHRRNFENRS
MBI ETHBRBHEBMTSNE
HAE R R -FEBIIR SR EFTAAEL
BEEIS% (ZE—TF:15%) °
EFEREE T ERRATEER
X NiEBERBENEEEBYH ™M
BERZEHMET -

BRERCREEAEMARZA
WEeRiREREEAEME
ForEeBAETREH] EZT
FEVRBAERER  1WiR20% (=
T—FF:20% ) NAEFHEER
REEARRMFNRSRE AL
KT BBARMmENRBERER-
BRARESREMBOREIRES15%
(ZZE—ZTF:15%) ;T EFHE
BEI2RI/BEERE Ik
BERRALEEBHMHER A
HAMEE °

EREAE EARRIEALR
TEEH TGS RS EL BN
2 4 A T 288 1K M I 4 3 -
e 78 3 SR AE
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24.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& 817

RRMIEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

INVENTORIES

2011 2010
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—g——F _ZT-ZF
ARBTRE AR®TFT
Raw materials JR# 238,833 169,555
Finished goods I 224,168 210,667
463,001 380,222
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. B EHIER R A EKRRIE
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
—e——F _ZT-ZTF
AR®TFRET ARETRT
Trade receivables JEUE F R 1,215,744 945,615

Less: Allowance for bad and BRI ER B
doubtful debts (90,636) (77,375)
1,125,108 868,240
Bills receivable fE R E & 176,671 91,822
Other receivables H b e W 508 40,995 28,241
Deposits and prepayments e REMNKIEA 106,468 67,448
1,449,242 1,055,751

All the bills receivable will be matured within a period
of 90-180 days.

Included in trade receivables are an amount due from
a subsidiary of a shareholder of the Company and
an amount due from an associate of RMB1,653,000
and RMB12,572,000 (2010: RMB3,458,000 and
RMB1,205,000) respectively. The amounts are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IR =5 EE

FT 78 B UM = 15 15 #5 1A 90 E 180K Hf
SRR

EWESEREABERIKARNF —
ZREZ B R B FRIE A K E WK
—HBERARESNABARE
1,653,000 & A K #12,572,0007¢C

—ET—-FF: AR%3,458,0007T
& AR #1,205,0007) c 2 Z 518
AEEE . R B RAREKKERER-

RATHARNER QA
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 -
180 days to its trade customers. The following is an
aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B HRF M T

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —T——F+-_A=+—HILFE

24. FEI 3R 7 IR % B H b FE Uy 3% IR

(%)

AEBETEHRFFHI0E180
AKZIEEH - HREHRNEEH
EIMEKE ZER (LB RER

doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date at BE) CBREDIT
the end of the reporting period.

2011 2010
RMB'000 RMB’000
“E——% _—T—FTHF
AR®TRE AR®ETR
0 to 90 days 0£290:K 723,551 542,565
91 to 180 days 91£180K 241,085 212,710
181 to 365 days 1812365K 126,159 72,920
Over 365 days 365K A E 34,313 40,045
Trade receivables B 5 R R 1,125,108 868,240

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed
to customers are reviewed once a year.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB160,472,000 (2010: RMB112,965,000) which are
past due at the reporting date for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the amounts
are still considered recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances. The average age
of these trade receivables is 126 days and 377 days in
the year of 2011 and 2010 respectively.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 43

BOTETES BTG
EEFNEREERREEF A
R AEEYEEFORERT
B—E R — R

AEEMNEWEZRAEHRE BT
BRm&EAAR160,472,0007T
(Z2—ZF: AR®112,965,000
JC) MEUER R - EE R IR4E B HiE
H AR CREELEERET
BesmRATKE HAERIL
EELBEEBEREE ~SEHME
NZEEBRFEENERR -Z 5
EWBSEFINRN _—_E—FER_-F
—ZFNEHERE D A A126K &
377K e



24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not

=

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %14 BA 75 5 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

(%)

24. FEI 3R 7 IR % B H b FE Uy 3% IR

EaBERBENEKE SRR

impaired: AR R
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
—E——F —T-FF
ARBTFRE AR¥KTE
181 to 365 days 181£365K 126,159 72,920
Over 365 days 365K A £ 34,313 40,045
160,472 112,965

The Group has provided fully for all receivables over
2 years because historical experience is such that
receivables that are past due beyond 2 years are
generally not recoverable.

REB—RERAEBERFHE
WERSRIE L 2 88 AREBHE

4
N\

BB EE Y E o

&5 5% 8 B 1B A A R U

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debt: RZRBENEE :
2011 2010
RMB’'000 RMB'000
—E——KF —T-FF
ARBTRE AR%®TT
Balance at beginning of year F AR 77,375 56,467

Impairment losses recognised on P WK IE HE SR B R (B & 18

receivables 21,854 20,908
Impairment losses reversed VERIEN SRk E] (5.822) -
Amounts written off as uncollectible  #F 4 & T 8E YL [B] #) 7R 18 (2,771) -
Balance at end of year FRER 90,636 77,375

Bills receivables of approximately RMB93,038,000
(2010: RMB78,578,000) was endorsed with recourse
to third parties at 31st December, 2011 and
corresponding trade payables of RMB93,038,000 (2010:
RMB78,578,000) were included in the consolidated
statement of financial position accordingly.

At 31st December, 2011, the Group has pledged bills
receivables having a carrying value of approximately
RMB Nil (2010: RMB 4,342,000 ) to banks to secure
bank borrowings granted to the Group.

R-_E——F+-_A=+—08" &
FEZHBRENEEERKZEEY
A AR #93,038,000c (ZE—F
F£: AR#78,578,0007T) - T AR
#593,038,0007T (=T —ZFF : AR
#78,578,0007C ) FiH B & 5 & 1+
REEFTALZERBARRE -

R—_E——F+_A=+—H 'K
EECEFERAENAARKZ T
(ZZE—ZF4F: AR¥4,342,0007T)
B U Z i TR 1T UEARER
FAREB ZRITEEZER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B HRF M T

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —T——F+-_A=+—HILFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24, [BIx 8 5 R B H fh fE i 718

(continued)

Other receivables are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and have no fixed term of repayment except for other
receivables from immediate holding company. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the amounts
are expected to be recovered in the next twelve
months. The ageing analysis of other receivables net
of allowance for bad and doubtful debts based on the
invoice date is stated as follows:

(%)

Hith R UK IR A K - 2 B M B
[E] %€ 22 TR H - E Lt R U B R R A
RAEFIERIN - RRBEFERR - &
ERAEBAHER AL+ —EA AWK
(O] o Hfth fE U TR IR (AR H0IR R R BR 1

VIRBEZ R HMRE DT 2540

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’'000

—E——F —T-FF

ARBTFRE AR¥KTE

0 to 90 days 0290K 25,326 16,621
91 to 180 days 912180k 12,655 3,343
181 to 365 days 181E365X 1,361 3,196
Over 365 days 365K A £ 1,653 5,081
40,995 28,241

At 31st December, 2010, an amount due from
immediate holding company of RMB131,000 is included
in other receivables (2011: RMB nil). The amount is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

R-ZZE—FTE+-_A=+—H H
W KIBERIEREKEZIER A A
NIEARK131,000 (ZE——
FARBEZL) ZRBAEER
BB RBERERKEE-

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debt: RZERBENEE :
2011 2010
RMB'000 RMB'000
—E——F —Z-ZF
ARBFRE AR%TE
Balance at beginning of year F AR 1,523 2,770

Impairment losses recognised on 4 FE WK TR B 58 A R (B B 18

receivables 114 53
Impairment losses reversed BB EEEE (4) (1,300)
Amounts written off as uncollectible 55 & T8 Uk [B] /9 5K 18 (16) -
Balance at end of year FRER 1,617 1,523
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HmARNE

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

25.

26.

(continued)

Included in deposits and prepayments is an amount due
from a jointly controlled entity of RMB527,000 (2010:
RMB147,000). The amount is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good repayment record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances and with good credit quality.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default and with good credit
quality.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

The amounts represented deposits pledged to banks
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The
amounts had been pledged to banking facilities and
were therefore classified as current assets. The deposits
carried fixed interest rate ranging from 3.1% - 3.3%
(2010: 1.98% — 2.28%) per annum.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. The deposits carry
interest rate of 0.50% (2010: 0.36%) per annum.

24, [BIx 8 5 R B H fh fE i 718
(%8)
e MENFEBEEK —BEER
P E R RIA ARKS527,0000T (=
T—FF: AR¥147,0007T) ° 3%

25.

26.

RIASEER %8 RAREKE

e yoo
5= °©

2 780 HA B KRB /) B W R IR e X
SEETERCHRIEINBEYLER
F-REAELR AN EEERY
BEAREHEERDEERATEZHK
Yo HEEBREHANKFS
Bk 1 H R (B R 4 o 7K 5k B I 4 L X
FEBRHGEREZNERTEE
{A] 5 4 -

BE R 280 5 I 2R Rk (8L B B MR TR B
B mmRak B ERERR TN
REEFHR-

EEARITER

ZRBEEERBETRITOTR A
EERETAEBMBETHE %
RIEERFIEARITREER K
AERBEE - ZEGFANETF
MENFINERIIEZE (ZE—
TH:198FBE228E) -

BITHERERRA®

RITEHREREBEASERFAEN
Re MR EFEREA=ME A=K
THEHRTER - EEFTANE
MEAOS0E(ZE—FF:0.36
E) o
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27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of accounts payable
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

reporting period:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B HRF M T

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —T——F+-_A=+—HILFE

27. FE {158 2 MR % B H b FE £+ 3R IR

BRBRERARNEZBZ2INENE
FEFRRE DT

2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
—2——F _—_ZT-ZTF
ARBTRT ARBTET
0 to 90 days 0£90:KX 361,690 200,613
91 to 180 days 912180k 30,465 32,753
181 to 365 days 181£365XK 8,764 21,028
Over 365 days 365K A £ 7,016 8,691
Trade payables JERTE 5 BR K 407,935 263,085
Bills payable JE T R % 348,070 339,310
Consideration payable for the U BE — R B A R BB AME R
acquisition of additional interest FERTEY R B (FfF7E29)
in a subsidiary (Note 29) 11,000 20,419
Consideration payable for acquisition Wi £ b {F FA 4 R 2 F R 8
of land use right and buildings KE - 12,308
Other payables and accrued expenses £ i & {5 5R I8 K fE 51 53 % 258,410 203,412
1,025,415 838,534

The normal credit period taken for trade purchases is

90-120 days. All the bills payable will mature within six

months.

Included in trade payables is amounts due to fellow

subsidiaries of RMB1,555,000 (2010: RMB840,000). The
amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& 817

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HZ=—Z——F+=-_F=+—HILFE

BRI T

28. BANK BORROWINGS 28. SRITHER
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
—g——F _IT-ZTF
ARBTFRE ARKTET
Secured bank loans BEMBEITER 84,012 114,721
The loans are repayable as follows: BEREFRAR T HRER
Within one year R—F A 21,003 26,418
More than one year, but not R —F LA EBTFBiE M
exceeding two years 21,003 22,076
More than two years, but not RAEAEBENBRRAFIAL
exceeding more than five years 42,006 66,227
84,012 114,721
Less: Amount due within one year WA RABAEEMR —F
shown under current liabilities LA 2] B &) 508 21,003 26,418
Amount due after one year R —E1& | B A 3R 63,009 88,303
Fixed-rate borrowings: [&] 7E 1) 2= 18 5K -
Within one year R—F A 21,003 22,076
More than one year but not R—F A LB EBMRF
exceeding two years 21,003 22,076
More than two years, but not RAFE LA BT R R F
exceeding five years 42,006 66,227
84,012 110,379
Variable-rate borrowing due R —FRNE B 2 F B F =& 5K
within one year - 4,342

As at 31st December, 2011, the bank loans of the Group
amounting to RMB84,012,000 (2010: RMB110,379,000)
were secured by the pledge of buildings and land use
rights. The bank loans carry interest ranging from 3.15%
10 3.62% (2010: 2.40% to 2.73%) per annum.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IR =5 EE

R—_E——F+_A=+—H 'K
EE8AHARYS84,012,0000T (=
%‘i—gi 110,379,0007T ) BV 4R 1T

B REREF R LA E
1’5%}*% o §R 1T B B I%X3.15/E £3.62
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —T——F+-_A=+—HILFE

28.

29.

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31st December, 2011, the bank loans of the
Group amounting to RMB nil (2010: RMB4,342,000)
were secured by the pledge of bills receivables. The
bank loans carry interest nil (2010: from 3.12% to
6.88%) per annum.

At 31st December, 2011, RMB84,012,000 (2010:
RMB110,379,000) are denominated in USD, which
are not denominated in functional currency of the
respective group entities.

OTHER PAYABLE

As at 31st December, 2011, the remaining
consideration relating to the acquisition of additional
interest in a subsidiary, Weigao Orthos payable by
the Group amounted to RMB21,445,000 (2010:
RMB40,783,000). The amount was unsecured, interest-
free and RMB11,000,000 (2010: RMB20,419,000) of
which was payable on demand and had been included
in other payables as current liabilities (note 27). The
remaining RMB10,445,000 (2010: RMB20,364,000)
was repayable by instalments until year 2013 and is
therefore included in non-current liability. The present
value of the instalment due in the next 12 months
amounted to RMB11,000,000 (2010: RMB20,419,000)
and it has been included in other payables of the
current liabilities (note 27). The imputed interest rate
was 5.31% (2010: 5.31%) per annum.

As at 31st December, 2010, an amount due to
immediate holding company of RMB11,204,000 was
included in other payables as current liabilities. The
amount was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The amount was settled during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

30. DEFERRED TAXATION 30. iR RER IR
The following is the deferred tax asset recognised and N TREERNEENRIEEERE
movements thereon during the current reporting year: RERREFENTHEES:
Excess of Allowance
depreciation  for bad and
over tax doubtful Unrealised
depreciation debts profit Total
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RERRE
fEBHNEE RERRG FEHRT @t
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
At 1st January, 2010 W-ZF-FF-F—H 1,481 5,930 2,476 9,887
Credited to profit or loss STABRR (13) 2,521 110 2,618
At 31st December, 2010 RZZ-ZF+-A=+—H 1,468 8,451 2,586 12,505
Credited to profit or loss STABRR 429 1,094 1,729 3,252
At 31st December, 2011 RZE——E+-A=t-H 1,897 9,545 4,315 15,757

At the end of the reporting period, deductible
temporary difference on bad debt RMB20,251,000
(2010: 14,186,000) is not recognized because of the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has estimated unused tax losses of approximately
RMB1,357,000 (2010: RMB99,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
tax losses can be carried forward for 5 years from the
date it incurred. Included in unrecognised tax losses
are losses of RMB89,000 that will expire in 2014,
losses of RMB1,000 that will expire in 2015, losses of
RMB1,267,000 that will expire in 2016.

R A K BE TEORI 7R 2R &9 3% F) 2R » 7R
WMEHR BUERA IR TR ZE
AR #20,251,000 (ZE—F
F: ANR%14,186,0007T ) I & #E

7
7 °

RIEHR AEEHEE T HIKHE
R m F B b 5T AR A IEEE LY
AR #1,357,000Cc (—F—ZF4F:
AR#99,0007T) - AR KRAETRAI R
2R A g ) SRR - B A B R TE S 18
BRELEHBEEE-RIEBEITH
EEXEHRBEANAF KERHIE
EBEETEEEN T —NFIH
B ET 18 A R#89,000T BN =T
— R FH M EEARE,0007T &
BR-ZE—AFIHHENEEARE
1,267,0007T °
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31. DEFERRED INCOME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B HRF M T

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —T——F+-_A=+—HILFE

1. BEW A
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
—E——% _—T-T&

ARBTRE AR%®TR

KRB BUF B

Arising from government grant

Pursuant to the Notice on Initialization of 863 Program
Research and Development on Key Materials for Typical
Human Tissue and Organ Replacement and Modification
in New Material Technology Field Guokefagao [2011]
No. 231, the Group received specific government grant
RMB5,601,000 for the purpose of incurring research
and development expenditure. RMB1,339,000 was
recognised as income in the current year to match with
research and development expense increased in the
specific projects in current year ended 31 December
2011.

Pursuant to the Notice on the Budget for First Topics
of National High-tech Research Development Plan
for the Year 2011 Guokefacai [2011] No. 129 issued
by the Ministry of Science and Technology of PRC,
the Company received specific government grant
RMB6,650,000 for purpose of incurring research
and development expenditure. RMB5,850,000 was
recognised as income in the current year to match with
research and development expense incurred in the
specific projects in current year ended 31 December
2011.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. k&%
Nominal  Number of Total
value of  Non-listed  Number of number
each share shares H shares of shares Value
RMB (Note ¢) (Note ¢) RMB'000
=14 kL
BiREE BiR®E HE®H B @& RE
ARE (BizEc) (BiEc) ARETTL
At 1st January, 2010 and RZZ-ZF-A-AK
31st December, 2010 “Z-F%+-A=1-H 1,296,320,000 856,242,162 2,152,562,162 215,256
Issue H shares (Note a) BATHRR (Fizta) - 85,624,000 85,624,000 8,562
Bonus issue of shares (Note b) BATALRR (MizEb) 1,296,320,000 941,866,162 2,238,186,162 223819
At 31st December, 2011 R-Z-——%+-fA=+-H 2,592,640,000 1,883,732,324 4,476,372,324 447 637

Notes:

(a)

On 5th May, 2011, 85,624,000 H Shares of RMBO0.1 each were
issued at RMB 16.65 per share.

On 30th June, 2011, 1,296,320,000 Non-listed Shares of
RMBO.1 each and 941,866,162 H Shares of RMBO0.1 each were
issued by way of bonus issue on the basis of one bonus H Share
for every existing H Share and one bonus Non-listed Share for
every Non-listed Share held in the Company.

The bonus shares and H shares issued rank pari passu with the
existing H Shares and Non-listed Shares in issue in all material
respect.

Non-listed Shares and H Shares are all ordinary shares in the
share capital of the Company. However, H Shares may only be
subscribed for by, and traded in currencies other than RMB
between, legal or natural persons of Hong Kong, the Macau
Special Administrative Region, Taiwan or any country other than
the PRC. Non-listed Shares must be subscribed for and traded in
RMB. All dividends in respect of H Shares are to be paid by the
company in Hong Kong dollars whereas all dividends in respect
of Non-listed Shares are to be paid by the Company in RMB.
The Non-listed Shares and the H Shares rank pari passu with
each other in all other respects and in particular, rank equally
for all dividends or distributions declared, paid or made.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IR =5 EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 31st March, 2011, the Group disposed of
90% of the equity interest in Shenyang Weigao
Jinbao Trading Co., Ltd. (“Shenyang Jinbao”) to an
independent person. The net assets of Shenyang
Jinbao at the date of disposal were as follows:

fre M HmARN

33.HEREB LR

(a)

R—_E——F=ZA=+—A8"
AEBR—ZBILALTEER
B cEEEAR AR
(NERESE]) 0% E &
GeERLEBHRMEEFE

W

31st March,
2011
RMB'000
—E——5
=B=+—H
ARETFIT

NET ASSETS DISPOSED OF HETHERHEERHE
Property, plant and equipment I ERY Y & 414
Inventories FE 13,913
Trade and other receivables & W E 5 BR 5R K H Ath B W SR IE 33,239
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR MRS 3,326
Trade and other payables JE 1~ B 55 BR 3% K% HL Al 8 < 308 (22,568)
Short-term Loan MHER (500)
Non-controlling interest SRR AR HE 2 (2,782)
25,042
Loss on disposal HEER (8,780)
Total consideration BWRE 16,262

Satisfied by: YRR

Other receivables H {th & We sk IR 16,262

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEMNRESRAFEE:
Bank balances and cash disposed of EHERTEBRLEE® 3,326
(3,326)

The consideration relating to disposal Shenyang
Jinbao will be received by instalments until year
2014. The total present value is RMB16,262,000,
and RMB13,941,000 unsettled as at 31 December
2011. The present value of the instalment due in
the next 12 months amounted to RMB8§,985,000
and it has been included in other receivable of the
current assets, the remaining RMB4,956,000 has
been included in non-current assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z-F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)

On 31st March, 2011, the Group disposed of
90% of the equity interest in Liaoning Weigao
Zhengfeng Medical Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Liaoning Zhengfeng”) to an independent person.
The net assets of Liaoning Zhengfeng at the date
of disposal were as follows:

33. HEMBAR (&)

(b)

R-ZE——F=A=+—8"
AREBH—ZBIATHER
FERS TYEERREER
RAEI([FEEEL])M0%MK
E-BFBETITEYNHERHNE
EFEINT:

31st March,

2011
RMB'000
—E——%5
=A=+—H
AREFIT
NET ASSETS DISPOSED OF HETIHIERHEERE
Property, plant and equipment ME KERFZE 172
Inventories FE 13,608
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 R 3K I H b FE SR IE 4,584
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR MRS 3,021
Trade and other payables JE 1~ B 5 BR 5k 2 B At & < ;R IE (6,839)
Short-term Loan MEER (4,500)
Non-controlling interest FE 15 AR 1 2 (1,005)
9,041
Loss on disposal HEEE (478)
Total consideration BwWRAE 8,563
Satisfied by: <t
Other receivables Bt e We sk IR 8,563
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEMNRSRAFRE
Bank balances and cash disposed of EHERITEHKR LIRS 3,021
(3,021)

The consideration relating to disposal Liaoning
Zhengfeng will be received by instalments
until year 2014. The total present value is
RMB8,563,000, and RMB7,606,000 unsettled as
at 31 December 2011. The present value of the
instalment due in the next 12 months amounted to
RMB3,516,000 and it has been included in other
receivable of the current assets, the remaining
RMB4,090,000 has been included in non-current
assets.

FRHEEETZHAREBR
—ZE—NERI D HKE B =
T——%+_A=+—H0" 1§
Bz A AKRMS,563,000T
ERENHART,606,000
TTeRFE+ =@ A8 3 HH
PHEFRNREBEAARK
3,516,0007C ' MEBF ARE
BEEETHEMBKIIE 45
AR #4,090,0007T 2 5T A 3F
MENEE ©

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED LB EEEEERE D FRGAKRN EE Q&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

34. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

35.

On 3rd October, 2011, the Group disposed its 50%
equity interest in JWMS to Biosensors. The consideration
was satisfied by (a) RMB787,920,000 by way of cash;
(b) RMB 1,478,828,000 by way of issue 260,000,000
Biosensors; (c) RMB 804,206,000 by way of issue
of convertible notes which were converted into
110,000,000 Biosensors shares at 31st December, 2011.

On 31st March, 2011, the Group disposed of 90% of
the equity interest in Shenyang Jinbao and 90% of
the equity interest in Liaoning Zhengfeng. The relative
considerations for the disposal of the two companies are
RMB16,262,000 and RMB8,563,000 respectively, satisfied
by other receivables amounted at RMB24,825,000, and
RMB21,547,000 unsettled as at 31st December, 2011.

LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under operating
leases during the period:

fre M HmARN

4. EBHFBERH

35.

R—_E——F+A=ZH &K%
ENERi @ﬁ%ﬁﬁé%@z%fém
S50%BE-REBEBGAARKE

787,920, OOOELME:—EEt (b)
AR #1,478,828,0007T LA B 17
260,000,000/% B D = ¢ (A
R #804,206,000 T LAZE 1T RA] AR 22
B(R-_ZE—F+-_A=+—8
B 4 5110,000,0000% #6 2% B 17 ) F
ASZ A5 o

R—_E——F=ZA=+—H8" &
SEHEERBEG2EMNIO%K
ERNREZEFZEHI0%MHE - &
EZEMBERAINMEERESD R
BARY16,262,0007T & AR
8,563,000t HR T ——F+ =
A=+ —HREENETEARK
24,825,0007T & A K #21,547,000
T HY E M e R IA S A ©

HixiE
FREFEDZEREA

RAHERBEELHOFHRE
He:

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB'000

—E——F —"ZE-IZTF

ARBTFRE ARKTE

Properties ) % 7,511 1,412
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 BA 75 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HZ=—Z——F+=_F=+—HILFE

35. LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
the following future minimum payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

35. ¥ &IE (&)

FREAFRERBA (F)

775

RREHAR KREBRETATEUE
LERL) BT BB HR R K
RENAREEE:

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’000

—E——F —Z-ZF

AR®TRT ARETT

Within one year R—FR 5,254 845
In the second to fifth year inclusive REZEZEFREF

(BREEMF) 2,990 328

8,244 1,173

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for its branch office premises, staff quarters
and warehouses. Leases are mainly negotiated for a
period ranging from two to five years and all rentals are
fixed.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately RMB1,946,000 (2010: RMB2,485,000).
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for following future minimum
lease payments.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IR =5 EE

KERNOREEASE A RARY
¥ BIEEkEREXMES-
MOFTERFHA-_FERAFTHE
EoMmArBERSHEETE -

FREESHBA

REAN FTREAMERSKALD
ABANERM1,946,000 (ZFE—F
F: AR%2,485,0007T) Rk E
HR AKERTIIRRKERS
HEPEI A -

B TRGRMBERA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

iR MBS HmARN

35. LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued) 35. HORKIE (&)

The Group as lessor (continued) FTEEEBHBEAN (E)
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
—E——F _IT-ZTF
ARBTRE ARETT
Within one year R—F A 545 1,639

In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_ZEFRF

(BREREMEF) 409 -

Operating lease payments represent rentals receivable
by the Group from a portion of its office premises.
Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for one year.

REROFTIREAEERE R DY)
XEomELSES HOKDHE
B mAER - FAEE N E -

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EFKIRE
At 31st December, 2011, the Group had commitments RZE——F+ZHA=1+—H 'K
which were contracted for but not provided in the SERGEMBHRETERDTL
consolidated financial statements: 18 R B Ay R o -
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB'000
—E——F —ZT-TF
AR®TFRE ARETT
Acquisition of property, WEME  BFE REiE
plant and equipment 435,076 328,961
37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37. LB ER

On 21st April, 2011, the Company received a notice
of arbitration issued by the Hong Kong International
Arbitration Centre, which is related to the dispute
in the contract with ADJECT ApS for a maximum
loss up to US$49,600,000. As at the date of 31st
December, 2011, the arbitration is still in the progress.
The Directors believe that the arbitration will have
no significant impact on the financial position of the
Group. The Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities as at 31st December, 2011.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 4E 5

RZE——FWA=-+—H KA
AIWEI B BB MRES LD
R B D FLEEADIECT ApSE
4% Kk & %49,600,0003% 7T /) 18
KRN E—F+_-_A=+—8H"
ZHRBIDARER - EERE ZPE
BreEEAEBNMERAIEES
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A=+T—BAFaEERNERKEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %54 BA 75 3% b &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

The Group had the following related party
transactions during the two years ended 31st
December, 2011:

38. HEALXRS

(@) RBE_ZE——F+_H
=t+t—HIEMEFERN X&E
BMETNIEEALRS:

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB’000

—E——F _—_T-IFF

ARBFRE AR®TE

Sales to a fellow subsidiary HETRZRMMEB QA 7,175 7,554

Sales to an associate HE THE R A] 231,065 156,794
Sales to a subsidiary of HE TARRRIRER

a shareholder of the Company  Hi/& 2 & 27,111 16,271
Purchases from fellow EIGEEINGIEES:

subsidiaries 36,141 25,763

Rental payments to ultimate MREIER AR MRS

holding company 2,100 2,100
Construction service from EREE NN ENGIE:Si

fellow subsidiaries EERB 14,351 -

Details of amounts due from/to related parties are
set out in notes 24, 27 and 29.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members
of key management during the year was as
follows:

FEURRFE A LT RIBR B
AN EE24 - 27 %29 °

(b) EXEEEARMEEM

REN EERISERED
H Bk B H I BT

2011 2010

RMB’000 RMB'000

—Z2——F —ZT-ZF

ARB®TRE AREKETET

Short-term employee benefits I ES R 4,374 3,894
Post-employment benefits BB 12 18 A 31 47
4,405 3,941

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IR =5 EE

EENTERITBRAENHM
HEMEZEE2R
KANTHBEMET -

BRI A L&

BOFHRERNERAR
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39. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees of the Group in Hong Kong. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of the trustees. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as incurred.

The Group has established different benefits schemes
for its full-time PRC employees according to the relevant
PRC regulations and rules, including provision of
housing provident fund, medical insurance, retirement
insurance, unemployment insurance, labour injury
insurance and pregnancy insurance. Pursuant to these
existing schemes the Group contributes 8%, 8%, 18%,
2%, 1% and 1% of the basic salary of its employees
to the housing provident fund, medical insurance,
retirement insurance, unemployment insurance, labour
injury insurance and pregnancy insurance, respectively.

The contributions paid and payable to the schemes by
the Group are disclosed in note 12.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 4E 5
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

39. B ¢kl FIEH B

AEERAKSEETEMERER
MEERMHIERTESE 8 ([58
Bertdl) REANEER
AEENEESRATKE LUAES
AREEAEEE -ZEKRE
ERNEES 2EHBRARRALE -

AEBECEREBEEETPBEER 2R
TREERZAREHNEE B2
REEELES BERR  BIKMR
R RKERB - TERBEIRR
b - BBEAKEZERBTE A&
EHRliZEEEAEFSHS% 8%
18% 2% 1% 1% AEFEEATES
BERR RKRER - - KEzRRER T
15 1R By M AT A AR B B R R o

ARG RS EE N R
SR 2B R -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 HZ =

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

.
Ne)

RIS RaR I ot

T——Ft+-A=+—HLLFR

40. X AT ERME 2 FFR

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED I3 & = 5

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31st N—_E——FR —_FE—ZFTEFE+_A
December, 2011 and 2010 are as follows: =—+—H KEEH Bﬁ% NBEIHEEE
LUNNE
Country of Proportion
Form of incorporation ownership
business or registration/ Registered interest held
Name structure operations capital by the Group Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
HEMBIRERE FRABHEEN
£4 EEE T 3 BEHER HREF FAE#LE TERE
EE &
Weihai Jierui Medical Products Incorporated PRC RMB32,000,000 100% - Manufacturing of medical PVC
Company Limited* granules, plastic packing
bags and carton boxes
HEZRBRRERERA ERiAE HE AR 32,000,000 100% - BUERAPVCHHE BRAEER
PEiv
Weihai Weigao Blood Purification  Incorporated PRC RMB20,000,000 70% - Manufacturing of medical blood
Products Co., Ltd* purification treatments and
related consumables
HERRNRHERERA B3 A il AR 20,000,000 70% - SEMRHCREREREFEN
Weihai Weigo Group Mould Co., Incorporated PRC RMB8,000,000 90% 10% Manufacturing of moulds
Ltd.*
HERRREEAERA ERiAE il AR #8,000,0007C 90% 10%  SGERE
Shandong Weigao Orthopaedic Incorporated PRC RMB90,000,000 75% 25% Manufacturing of orthopaedic
Device Co., Ltd medical device products
LRBEERMEBRAR G AvE i AR 90,000,000 75% 5%  HERHBERBER
Sichuan Jierui Weigao Medical Incorporated PRC RMB2,000,000 100% - Trading of medical products
Device Co., Ltd.*
m)IZhReRERHERAR SRR HE AR #2,000,0007C 100% - EBERFEM

O TERBBRBERA A
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r & B4 75 5 35 Bt 2

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

40. X AT ERME 2 FFR

Note: The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Group

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

Registered under the laws of the PRC as domestic enterprise

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 4E 5

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (&)
(continued)
Country of Proportion
Form of incorporation ownership
business or registration/ Registered interest held
Name structure operations capital by the Group Principal activities
Directly  Indirectly
EMsIRERE sRABFHEN
10 REERER HEHER HEREE FA#ELE FERE
EE &

Shandong Weigao New Life Incorporated PRC RMB5,000,000 100% - Manufacturing of medical

Medical Device Company products

Limited*
LIRBEHERRSHARARA MK HE AR 5,000,000 100% - REBREM
Shandong Weigao Automatic Incorporated PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100% Manufacturing of industrial

Equipment Company Limited* automatic equipments and

parts

URE=EBREERAT G AvE HE AR 5,000,000 - 100%  SETXEHCRBEREMN
Shandong Weigao Group Logistic ~ Incorporated PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - Provision of logistics and

Company Limited* storage services
LRBEEENRERA R Baii A HE AR 20,000,000 100% - REVRREERSB
Shandong Weigao Medical Incorporated PRC RMB20,000,000 - 70% Manufacturing of medical

Holding Company Limited* products
LR REREERERA A ML HE AR #20,000,0007 - 0% HEBREM

M ERIEEZR/EAEEZENE

EERER

FENAEETIENRBEAR

Al -ERERRIILEMLHE AR
BR<RBBNITE -

BB R AR ERETEMERE

o

# REPEEEEMARL L
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RRMIEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2011 #{Z—F——F +—_A=1+—HILFE

41. COMPANY'’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 41.FXQFZHMEBERILE
POSITION
2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000
—Z2——F —_ZT-IZF
ARBTFRE AREKTE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME KERZE 1,503,063 821,679
Investment properties KEWE 162,364 178,898
Prepaid lease payments A HEERIEA 230,633 198,031
Long term receivables = HAfE W SR8 9,046 -
Intangible assets BIVEE 2,198 2,649
Investment in subsidiaries R B RRRRE 479,299 499,948
Investment in jointly controlled REARZEHEBNKE
entities - 13,000
Interest in an associate R E R AR 72,314 72,314
Deferred tax asset BEEIEEE 10,362 7,974
2,469,279 1,794,493
Current assets MBEE
Inventories FE 236,779 186,657
Prepaid lease payments A HEENIA 5,319 -
Trade and other receivables JEUNE 5 I HL At & L 5k 1,134,746 813,940
Amount due from related parties JE UK 3 A\ = 5KI8 800,014 333,163
Pledged bank deposits EHEBRITFRK - 100,546
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 863,313 356,082
3,040,171 1,790,388
Current liabilities Vi R=NE
Trade and other payables e B 5 I B Ath JE - 5K 826,403 652,791
Amount due to related parties JETRAE A T3R8 19,390 519,621
Bank borrowings — repayable MITER—ER—FAEE
within one year 32,003 26,418
Tax payable JE 1~ 7 18 18,395 29,895
896,191 1,228,725
Net current assets MBNE EFRR 2,143,980 561,663
4,613,259 2,356,156
Capital and reserves BARK
Share capital fix 447,637 215,256
Reserves 1 4,091,368 2,032,233
Total equity IR HE 4 58 4,539,005 2,247,489
Non-current liability EmBBME
Bank borrowings — repayable after RITER—BAR—F1&
one year B8 63,009 88,303
Deferred income B A 800 -
Other payable H b FE T 5B 10,445 20,364
74,254 108,667
4,613,259 2,356,156

SHANDONG WEIGAO GROUP MEDICAL POLYMER COMPANY LIMITED IR =5 EE

BATHARNERRA
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011 B2 —T——F+-_A=+—HILFE

42. FINANCIAL SUMMARY 42. BBHE

For the year ended 31st December,

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B#E+-B=1+—-HLEE
8- _—T-TF _FETNF _TIT\F _TTLHF

ARBTFRE ARBTT AR®TRT ARETn ARETR

RESULTS Ed |

Revenue WA 3,180,577 2,462,557 1,878,495 1,514,367 1,095,109
Profit before taxation PR 75t Al A 3,592,506 887,884 704,960 524,082 332,074
Taxation BiE (124,472) (85,532) (71,782) (38,977) (2,732)
Profit for the year FREF 3,468,034 802,352 633,178 485,105 329,342

Profit attributable to: ToIEEEMR

A
Owners of the Company ARB#A A 3,462,172 799,072 633,864 482,394 308,149
Non-controlling interests ~ FE4% ik ## 35 5,862 3,280 (686) 2,711 21,193
3,468,034 802,352 633,178 485,105 329,342
As at 31st December,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
®+=A=+-8H
—2-—-% _—IT-TF C_TTNF _ITT\F _TTLF
AERRTRE ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
ASSETS AND BERAR
LIABILITIES
Total assets BRE 9,371,967 4,649,364 3,951,795 3,340,666 2,140,506
Total liabilities mafk (1,160,438) (1,015,491) (1,008,929) (855,743) (755,511)
Non-controlling interests ~ FE4% i ## 2% (9,538) (7,463) (3,183) (8,191) (57,233)

8,201,991 3,626,410 2,939,683 2,476,732 1,327,762
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